AGENDA

MEETING OF THE PLAN COMMISSION OF THE VILLAGE OF WILLOWBROOK TO BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY
April 6, 2022 at 7:00 P.M. AT THE VILLAGE OF WILLOWBROOK POLICE DEPARTMENT, TRAINING ROOM,

7760 QUINCY STREET, WILLOWBROOK, ILLINOIS §0527.

THE VILLAGE WILL BE PROVIDING AN OPTION TO ATTEND THE APRIL 6, 2022 PLAN COMIMISSION

MEETING VIRTUALLY. TO JOIN THE ZOOM MEETING, USE THE LINK BELOW:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://usO6web.zoom.us/i/89097975937 ?pwd=dDdXQnFXeGNubFRkZyShTD rcwliXdz09

Meeting I1D: 890 9797 5937
Passcode: 694214

1.
2.

5.
6.
7.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
OMNIBUS VOTE AGENDA

A. Waive Reading of Minutes (APPROVE)

B. Minutes of January 12, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting

PLAN COMMISSION CONSIDERATION: Zoning Hearing Case 22-02: Consideration of a petition
for approval of special use permit to allow a 18,601 square foot, one-story addition to the
existing Gower West Elementary School building, expansion and improvements to the existing
parking lots, addition of a new parking lot, addition of a new children’s playground, and general
site and landscaping improvements in the R-1 Zoning District; approval of a Final Plat of
Subdivision to consolidate the two-lot property; and consideration of other such relief,
exceptions, and variations from Title 9 and Title 10 of the Village Code. The property is located
at 7650 South Clarendon Hiils Road, in the Village of Willowbrook. The applicant for this petition
is Gower School District 62, 7700 South Clarendon Hills Road, Willowbrook, IL 60527.

A. PUBLIC HEARING

B. DISCUSSION/RECOMMENDATION
VISITOR’S BUSINESS
COMMUNICATIONS

ADIOURNMENT



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLAN COMMISSION HELD ON WEDNESDAY,
JANUARY 12, AT THE WILLOWBROOK POLICE DEPARTMENT, TRAINING ROOM, 7760
QUINCY STREET, WILLOWBROOK, ILLINOIS

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Kopp called the meeting to order at the hour of 7:01 p.m.

The Governor of the State of IL. has declared a gubernatorial disaster proclamation in response
to the Covid-19 Act outbreak and all the Village of Willowbrook is covered by the disaster area.
In light of the ongoing Covid 19 outbreak the Mayor of the Village of Willowbrook has
determined that an in-person meeting for the January 12,2022 Plan Commission may not be
practical or prudent for all persons in light of the disaster thus the Village has provided an option
to attend the January 12,2022 Plan Commission meeting remotely.

2. ROLL CALL

Those physically present at the VOW Police station were Chairman Kopp, Vice Chairman Wager,
Commissioners Baksay, Kanaverskis, Kaczmarek, Walec, Assistant Village Administrator Sean
Halloran, Planner Karen Stonehouse, Building Official Roy Giuntoli, and Recording Secretary
Lisa Shemroske

Present Via Zoom COVID -19 Pandemic were Commissioner Kaucky and Village Attorney Matt
Holmes

3. OMNIBUS VOTE AGENDA
The items on the Omnibus Vote Agenda were as follows:

A. Waive Reading of Minutes (APPROVE)
B. Minutes — Special Meeting, December 8,2021

MOTION: Made by Vice Chairman Wager seconded by Commissioner Baksay, approve the
Omnibus Vote Agenda as presented, all in favor

Roli Call votes: AYES, Commissioners Baksay, Kanaverskis, Kaczmarek, Kaucky, Walec, Vice
Chairman Wagner and Chairman Kopp NAYS: None

MOTION DECLARED CARRIED

4, PLAN COMMISSION CONSIDERATION: Zoning Hearing Case 22-01; Consideration of a
petition to approve a special use permit for an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensary at 800 75® Street,
Unit 900, in the Village of Willowbrook, the applicant for this petition is Mint IL, LLC,3816 S
Harlem Ave, Lyons, IL 60534. Planner Stonehouse noted that the address is 900 75t Street,
Willowbrook, IL
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Made

A. PUBLIC HEARING

Motion to open Public Hearing at 7:04pm was made by Vice Chairman Wagner, seconded

by Commissioner Walec, all in favor
Roll Call: AYES: Commissioners Baksay, Kanaverskis, Kaczmarek, Kaucky, Walec, Vice

Chairman Wagner and Chairman Kopp NAYS: None
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED

B. DISCUSSION/RECOMMENDATION

See Court Reporter Minutes for Discussion and Recommendation

Motion to close Public Hearing at 8:25pm was made by Vice Chairman Wagner and seconded by

Commissioner Kaczmarek, all in favor.
Roll Call; AYES: Commissioners Baksay, Kanaverskis, Kaczmarek, Kaucky, Walec, Vice

Chairman Wagner and Chairman Kopp, NAYS: None
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED

MOTION: Based on the submitted petition and testimony presented, I move that the Plan
Commission forward its findings of Fact to the Mayor and Village Board for the special use as
described in the Staff Report and Attachments prepared for the January 12,2022 Plan Commission
for PC 22-01 and recommend approval of the special use subject to the Recommended Conditions
of Approval.

by Vice Commissioner Kaucky and second by Vice Chairman Wagner, all in favor

Roll Call Vote: AYES: Commissioners Baksay, Kanaverskis, Kaczmarek, Kaucky, Walec, Vice
Chairman Wagner, and Chairman Kopp NAYS: None

MOTION DECLARED CARRIED
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6. VISTOR’S BUSINESS.
None

7. COMMUNICATIONS:
None

8. ADJOURNMENT
MOTION: Made by Vice Chairman Wagner and second by Commissioner Walec to adjourn the
meeting of the Plan Commission at the hour of 8:33 p.m. all in favor
Roll call: AYES: Commissioners Baksay, Kanaverskis, Kaczmarek, Kaucky, Walec, Vice
Chairman Wagner and Chairman Kopp NAYS: None

MOTION DECLARED CARRIED
UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE
PRESENTED, READ, AND APPROVED,
April 6,2022
Chairperson

Minutes transcribed by Building and Zoning Secretary Lisa J Shemroske



1/12/2022
VILLAGE OF WILLOWBROOK - PLANNING & ZONING

22-01

KIMBERLEE A. ELLIOTT




VILLAGE OF WILLOWBROOK
PLANNING & ZONING

HEARING CASE NUMBER 22-01

REPCORT OF PROCEEDINGS VIA ZOOM had at
the meeting held before the Planning & Zoning
Commission of Willowbrook on the 12th day of January,
2022, at the hour of 7:00 p.m., as reported by Kim
Elliott, Certified Shorthand Reporter in and for the

County of Kane and State of Illinois.
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APPEARANCES :

Daniel Kopp - Chairman
John Wagner - Vice Chairman
Catherine Kaczmarek - Member
Leonard Kaucky - Member

Maciej Walec - Member

Zoltan Baksay - Member

Ronald Kanaverskis - Member
Matthew Holmes - Village Attorney
Sean Halloran - Assistant Village Administrator
Karen Stonehouse - Village Planner
Roy Giuntoli - Building Official

Lisa Shemroske - Recording Secretary

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS

(630) 690-0050
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CHAIRMAN KOPP: I call to ordexr the regular
meeting of the plan commission of the Village of
Willowbrook and ask the plan commission secretary to
call the roll.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Baksay.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kanaverskis?

COMMISSIONER KANAVERSKIS: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kaczmarek?

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kaucky?

Commissioner Walec?

COMMISSIONER WALEC: Here,.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Vice Chairman Wagner?

VICE CHATRMAN WAGNER: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Chairman Kopp?

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Assistant Village
Administrator Sean Halloran?

MR. HALLORAN: Here,.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Village Attorney Matt Holmes?

MR. HOLMES: Here.

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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A VOICE: My computer says he's waiting to --

Oh, is he on?
(Unknown voices speaking.)

MS. SHEMROSKE: Planner Karen Stonehouse?

MS. STONEHOUSE: Here.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Building Official Roy
Giuntoli?

MR. GIUNTOLI: Present.

MS. SHEMROSKE: And I am for the record
recording secretary Lisa Shemroske.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Next item on the agenda is

the omnibus vote agenda.

want an item removed from the omnibus vote agenda?

If not, will someone make a motion

to approve the omnibus vote agenda?

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: So moved.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Second.

CHAIRMAN KOPP:

I'd ask the plan commission

secretary to call the vote.

MS.

SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Baksay?

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Aye.

MS.

SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kanaverskis?

METRC REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS

(630) 690-0050
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COMMISSIONER KANAVERSKIS: Aye,
MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kaczmarek?
COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Aye.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kaucky is not

here.
Commissioner Walec?

COMMISSIONER WALEC: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Vice Chairman Wagner?

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Chairman Kopp?

CHATRMAN KOPP: Yes.

THE REPORTER: I'm sorry, I didn't get the
second.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: All right. Next item -- will
someone, we're sort of catching up on our procedures,
will someone make a motion --

MR. HOLMES: I don't mean to interrupt but
because there's a remote option for this meeting --

CHATRMAN KOPP: (Continuing) -- to open the
public hearing for Zoning Hearing Case No. 22-017

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: So moved.

COMMISSIONER WALEC: Second.

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD,., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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CHAIRMAN KOPP: 1I'd ask the plan commission

secretary to call the vote on opening the public

hearing.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Baksay?

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY:

Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commisgioner Kanaverskis?

COMMISSTONER KANAVERSKIS:

Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commigsioner Kaczmarek?

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK:

Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissgioner Walec?

COMMISSIONER WALEC:

Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Vice Chairman Wagner?

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Chairman Kopp?

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Yes.

MR. HALLORAN: Just to correct --

Commigsioner Kaucky was on.

He's on right now.

MS. SHEMROSKE: He ig?

He raised his hand.

Okay. I didn't --

CHAIRMAN KOPP: I need to make a statement.

The Governor of the State of Illinois has declared a

Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation in response to

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD.,

(630)

690-0050

WHEATON, ILLINOIS
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the Covid-19 outbreak and all of the Village of
Willowbrook is covered by the disaster area. 1In
light of the ongoing Covid-19 outbreak, the Mayor of
the Village of Willowbrook has determined that an in
person meeting for the January 12th, 2022 plan
commission meeting may not be practical or prudent in
light of the disaster.

All of the members of the plan
commission participating in the January 12, 2022 plan
commission meeting, wherever their physical location,
shall be verified determined that they can hear one
another and can hear all discussion testimony during
the meeting.

The village will be providing an
option -- the village is providing an option to
attend the January 12, 2022 plan commission meeting
virtually with a Zoom link that's available.

THE REPORTER: I'm having trouble hearing.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: The purpose of this public
hearing shall be to consider a petition for a special
use permit and other relief as may be required to

allow adult-use cannabis dispensing organizations to

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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operate in Suite 900 in the Willowbrook/Wingren Plaza
located on property located at 900 75th Street,
Willowbrook, Illinois.

The applicant for this petition is
Omar Fakhouri, sorry, on behalf of Mint IL, LLC of
Lyons, Illinois.

Notice of this public hearing was
published in the December 28th, 2021 edition of the
Chicago Sun-Times.

MS. STONEHOUSE: I need to correct the
address. I think you said 900. It's 800 75th
Street, Unit 900.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Okay.

MS. STONEHOUSE: That's the correct address.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: So the address --

MS. STONEHOUSE: Agenda --

CHAIRMAN KOPP: 800 75th Street, Unit 900,
Willowbrook, Illinois.

S0 everyone who testifies will have
to be sworn in by the court reporter.

And will the village planning

consultant please make her presentation, please?

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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MS. STONEHOUSE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The plan commigsgion is being asked to make a
recommendation to the village board regarding a
proposed adult use cannabis dispensing organization
which is a special use in the B-2 zoning district.

The location is 800 West 75th
Street, Suite 900 in Willowbrook Plaza alsoc known as
Wingren Plaza. It's at the cormer of 75th Street and
Illinois Route 83, northeast corner. It is a vacant
retail space. It's about 3800 square feet and was
formerly occupied by Chase Bank.

The Cannabis Regulation Tax Act was
enacted by the State of Illinois to regulate all
cannabis related businesses including cultivation,
transport and retail sales. This double-sided
printout lists rules just for dispensing
organizations. It's a pretty (inaudible audio)
document. This includes guidelines from licensing to
detailed operation of the (inaudible audio}.

Staff have reviewed the application
and feel that the proposed use as described in the

staff report does meet the standards for a special

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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use.

The applicant, Mr. Fakhouri, would
be happy to go through these standards if desired by
the plan commission.

T will add that staff has suggested
three conditions for the plan commission to include
in its recommendation if it recommends approval to
the village board. One is that the special use shall
comply with all statutory requirements of the
Cannabis Regulation Tax Act and that the operator of
the cannabis business establishment shall provide a
copy of the state approved license to the planning
and development department of Willowbrook. Two, is
that a separate sign permit shall be obtained for the
proposed building signage pursuant to the village
code. And three, that the special use permit for the
proposed development shall be null and veid if
construction for the proposed use is not commenced
within 18 months of the date of any approval by the
village board.

Staff do recommend that the plan

commission board (inaudible audio) to the village

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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board with a recommendation for approval. And I'll
be glad to answer any questions at the appropriate
time.

CHATRMAN KOPP: Now is the opportunity for
the applicant if you want to make a presentation you
will need to be sworn in, sir.

MR. FAKHOURI: Okay. Yeah.

CHATRMAN KOPP: Is& she muted?

MR. HALLORAN: No, she's not muted.

THE REPORTER: Can you raise your right hand,

please, sir? If you can raise your right hand,

please. Sir, if you can raise your right hand I have

to swear you in.

A VOICE: Kim, can you hear us?

MR. HALLORAN: Kim, can you turn it up?

THE REPORTER: Can you guys hear me?

CHATRMAN KOPP: Yes.

A VOICE: Can you swear him in, please?

THE REPORTER: I keep asking him to raise his
hand.

A VOICE: O©Oh, we couldn't hear you. Sorry.

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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(Whereupon the witness was duly
sworn. )
OMAR FAKHQURI,
having been first duly sworn, by the Notary, was
testified as follows:

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Go ahead.

MR. FAKHOURI: Thank you for the opportunity
to give some background on myself and, you know, my
team's interest on opening an adult use cannabis
dispensary at 800 75th Street, Suite 900.

So I wanted to actually give some
background on myself. So my name is Omar Fakhouri.
I'm the CEO of Mint IL, LLC. Essentially I have been
in the cannabis industry for about four years now so
this isn't my first retail location for a dispensary.

The Mint brand actually started in
Arizona so there's three retail stores in Arizona and
it's expanded to Michigan where there's two existing
operating stores there and there's two more that are
under construction in Michigan as well as a
cultivation facility. So that's not what I'm

applying for here but obviously related to the

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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industry in Michigan as well and as well asg plans in
Missouri and Massachusetts.

This isn't our first store in
Tllinois so my understanding this is obviously the
first store for the village. I'm very excited at the
opportunity. I think it's an opportunity for myself
but it's also a great opportunity for the village and
the community.

So, you know, when I lock at that I
think of, you know, one, there's financial benefit
from a tax perspective for the village. I think for
customers, patients it gives them access to cannabis
which is, you know, sometimes it's a little bit more
difficult now in terms of proximity and where you can
get cannabis products and wellness products. So we
do see this as a really good fit.

And, you know, some background on
myself as well as prior to cannabis I was in
consulting. I was (inaudible audio) gas which is a
much different industry than cannabis and I've been
in Illinois for, you know, about the last 10 out of

12 years I've been in Illinois.

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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So I'm happy to answer any
questions on the site, on our operation. I also have
our counsel here Irina who has, I'll have her
introduce herself if that's okay, who has extensive
background in cannabis specific to Illinois on the
regulatory fund.

MS. DASHEVSKY: Hi. Yes, my name is Irina
Dashevsky. I am a partner at Greenspoon Marder. I
am the head of the Chicago office here and head up
the cannabis group. I've been practicing -- can you
all hear me?

A VOICE: Irina, one second, you're going to
have to be sworn.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: You're going to need to be
sworn in, Ms. Dashevsky, 1f you're going to make any
statements.

MS. DASHEVSKY: Sure. I can raise my right
hand but I don't think my video function is enabled.

(Whereupon the witness was duly

sworn. )

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 620-0050
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IRINA DASHEVSKY,

having been first duly sworn, by the Notary, was
testified as follows:

MS. DASHEVSKY: Okay. So began practicing,
I've been practicing law for 13 years. Began
cannabis law in 2018 in other jurisdictions while
Tllinocis was still a medical program, had a few
clients here then when Illinois went adult use my
firm and I represent, you know, publically traded
cannabis companies of all sizes throughout the
country as well as all segments of the cannabis
business ranging from transportation, cultivation,

dispensaries. Here in Illinois again we represent

lots of existing operators as well as applicants like

Mint who have won new dispensary licenses so I'm
quite familiar with the regulatory scheme. It is a

700 page act with respect to adult use, over 700

pages. I know it well but I don't know every nuance

so if there's a question that I cannot concretely
answer I'm alsc happy to provide after research a
further response.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: All right. Thank you. Do

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS

(630) 690-0050
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any of the commissioners have any questions of either
village staff or the applicant?

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: I have a few
questions. And forgive me if I overlooked this but
with the building exterior I noticed that --

THE REPORTER: Excuse me. I don't know who's
talking.

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Oh, sorry. Cathy
Kaczmarek.

THE REPORTER: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Sure. That there's
not going to be extensive change to the exterior of
the building. What are the plans for that drive
through area?

MR. FAKHOURI: 8o good question. Currently
the plan is to leave that as is. Regulations change.
We are hopeful at some point that the states will
come through with some sort of drive through
operation facility so we kind of hold out hopes for
that. If not, you know, that potentially could be
torn down for additional parking but at this point

it's going to be left as is.

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 620-~0050
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COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Left as is?

MR. FAKHOURI: Yeah.

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Okay. And then
another gquestion I have is sourcing for this. So
where is the source (inaudible audio) come for from
cannabis

MR. FAKHOURI: In terms of products?

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: The products. Would
that be f£rom Michigan?

MR. FAKHOURI: No. So, yeah, so we're unable
to bring product outside of Illinois. So everything
is produced or sold in our store would be produced in
Illinois.

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Okay.

MR. FAKHOURI: By a licensed facility in the
state. So there are 21 cultivation centers currently
approved as well as I think 40 craft grow operations
which are sort of smaller grow facilities and that's
essentially where products will be purchased from but
they're all licensed facilities, licensed by the
State of Illinois that we have to purchase from and

(inaudible audio} I guess on the point of craft grow

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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we were also fortunate enough to be awarded a craft
grow license so we have plans underway for the
development of that craft grow. That will probably
be a year plus in terms of construction and things
like that. That will be another source of supplies
our own craft grow operation.

COMMISSTONER KACZMAREK: Okay. Thank you.

MR. FAKHOURI: Yeah.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Okay. I had one but
(inaudible audio) second gquestion. I'm not sure if
this should be for you or Karen.

This is Chairman Kopp speaking.

So one, the parking are we
comfortable with 16 spaces based on what other
facilities the traffic they're seeing? Are 16 spaces
enough?

MS. STONEHOUSE: We think it will be enough.
The estimated number of customers and employees at
any given time would be under 10 we think.

MR. FAKHOURI: Yeah, I guess to clarify, this
is Omar speaking. The 16 spaces, I mean we have

access to all the parking that's there. I'm assuming

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOCIS
(630) 690-0050
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the 16 spaces is what's required for retail use.

MS. STONEHOUSE: Right.

MR. FAKHOURI: Based on square footage.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Exactly.

MR. FAKHOURI: So we'll have above and beyond
that number accessible to us. But, you know, as far
as what we think we'll need I mean is dependent on a
number of factors, you know, at any one point we'll
probably have eight to ten employees at one time and
then customers come in and it's a relatively quick
transaction, you know, where a customer comes in, you
know, ID'd, go in, search for the product, purchase
and exit. There's not really a lot of loitering that
kind of goes on there and a lot of times the orders
actually are done online. So people will order
online, come in for their pick up and obviously at
that point it's a much faster, you know, transaction
from that standpoint.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Okay. The other question,
this one if for Karen, in the future if they want to
do a drive through they have to come back to us for a

special use for the drive through?

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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MS. STONEHOUSE: Yes, it would be probably an
amendment to the special use but we would definitely
be coming back to you with that.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Okay.

COMMISSIONER WALEC: I do have a question.
This is Walec. Would you be able to describe the
security and delivery schedules with this facility?

MR. FAKHOURI: So security scheduling?

COMMISSIONER WALEC: No, no. The security --

MR. FAKHOURI: Secure transport?

COMMISSIONER WALEC: Yeah, the deliveries
actually.

MR. FAKHOURI: Yeah, I can speak to that and
I can have Irina chime in, too. Essentially the
deliveries happen outside of operating hours so it's
when really there's no other, you know, customers or
a lot of traffic going on. There are secure
trangport companies that are also licensed by the
State of Illinois that we have to use for delivery.
And, you know, we will have a separate entrance for
secure delivery. It will be on the west side of the

building is the current plan and again those, I don't

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050
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know all the rules in terms of how secure transport
works but there's manifest, there's GPS, it's highly
tracked and regulated. Essentially that's the model
we'll use those licensed transporters and they're
delivered before opening or after close of operation.

COMMISSIONER WALEC: And you will have --

MS. DASHEVSKY: Yeah, Omar, I can chime in.
Typically everything is tracked and the delivery
company has to go directly from the seller so whether
it's a craft grow, cultivation center, infuser, all
those are licensed entities. They can't make any
stops. Typically you'll see two delivery people for
security in the vehicle. It's an unmarked car. Most
of them look like a Sprinter van with no windows so
you're not going to see anything that's an obvious
cannabis delivery. Also cannabis products have to be
prepackaged and then also packaged in sort of the
larger order purchase containers so, you know, you
won't be able to discern from the outside what is in
those packages and typically in order to have gotten
a cannabis license you had to provide extensive plans

for the secure transport, they're in locked
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containers within the van and then there's a protocol
that typically someone from a dispensary including a
security manager and employee would come out and
facilitate the acceptance of and look through the
manifest, approve the order and then the delivery
person would leave.

COMMISSIONER WALEC: Okay.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: You know, I just remembered
another question. Is it still an all cash business?
MR. FAKHOURI: Yeah, so essentially all

transactiong --

CHAIRMAN KOPP: I'm not (inaudible audio) all
the retail is cash --

MR. FAKHOURI: Yeah, in terms of customers,
yeah, it's cash. Unfortunately, yeah, we can't use
credit cards at this point so it will be cash
egsentially. But in terms of banking there is
banking available so in terms of how we pay vendors
it will be essentially through check or wire
transfers and then banks will do their pick-ups, you
know, essentially daily so there isn't too much cash

on site at one time,
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COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: I have another
question. Sorry.

A VOICE: Oh, go ahead.

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: (Inaudible audio)
let's say a product has expired or (inaudible audio)
how do you dispose of that? 1Is that -- is there
proper ways it's disposed?

MS. DASHEVSKY: Omar, you want me to speak to
this?

MR. FAKHOURI: Sure. Yeah.

MS. DASHEVSKY: So that's a very highly
regulated process. You have to notify the department
of the disposal and there's a disposal protocol which
requires a destruction of the product depending on
what the product is whether it's flour or some sort
of infused product oil typically it's done by a
mixture where you render that product completely
unusable and you have to do that on camera and you
have to -- so everything is tracked from seed to
sale. So you have to track that product that's being
disposed of, notify once disposal has occurred and

it's also tracked in conjunction with the state
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system so you almost weigh it and it's all going to
get approved and you have to give notice that you're
going to dispose of a product in a state within seven
days it's going to kind of give you feedback on when
they're ready to approve your disposal of it. So you
can't just say oh, this is expired, I'm throwing it
in the trash. There's a very extensive protocol for
it.

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER KAUCKY: Hi, this is Len Kaucky.
I'm sorry earlier when you did attendance my phone
was muted.

I do have a question. Can you just
describe to me in terms of the customer for this
product just so I understand is anyone allowed to buy
this product or are there certain requirements that
have to be met?

MS. DASHEVSKY: So you have to be over 21
vears old -- I'm sorry, 21 years old or older.

COMMISSIONER KAUCKY: Okay. That's it
though? Basically that's 1it?

MS. DASHEVSKY: That's, yes.
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COMMISSIONER KAUCKY: Okay. Thank you.

MS. DASHEVSKY: It's like alcohol.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: This is Commissioner
Baksay. I do have a question. Do you know the
distance lot line to lot line to the Hinsdale South
High School property line?

MS. STONEHOUSE: Thig is Karen. I don't know
it offhand but I can probably find it out real
quickly.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: On Google Maps I was
checking in preparation for this meeting and I
estimate it to be over 700 feet. It's not a
scientific measurement by any stretch of the
imagination.

In reality, Mr. Fakhouri, I don't
think that this is pertinent to your application but
it did make me think about our village and any
location restrictions that we would want to put on
cannabis dispensaries. T would not be -- personally
I would not be in favor of anything that is more
restrictive of anything that we require of a liquor

Store or a bar or anything like that.
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Our village does have locations and
village codes Section 3-5-5, and this is actually on
tobacco so there's a section on tobacco and a section
on, you know, alcohol and then also amusement devices
which interestingly is far more restrictive than
either liquor or tobaccoc. But for example, the
tobacco products cannot be sold or offered for sale
or given away or delivered within 100 feet of any
school, child care facility or other building used
for education or recreational programs for persons
under the age of 18.

The State Liquor Control Act of
Illinois in Section 6-11 covers sale near churches,
schools and hospitals and, you know, if the
population is less than 1 million then you cannot
sell liquor at retail within 100 feet of any church,
school or institution of higher learning, hospital or
home for the aged; and then back to Willowbrook
Village Code Section 3-19-7 prohibits establishments
with amusement devices to be located within 1,000
feet of the property line of an educational

institution that minors attend and, you know, this
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includes pinball machines and billiard machines and
electronic darts as well as video gaming.

So really, again, unrelated to your
application, Mr. Fakhouri. I think there's an
ocpportunity for our village to review any potential
changes or amendments to our village code with
respect to specifically calling out the special use
permitted, you know, which is allowed for a cannabis
dispensary as we just changed but I think it would be
prudent for us to consider location restrictions at a
future date again unrelated to Mr. Fakhouri's
application for Mint LLC.

CHATIRMAN KOPP: Makes sense.

COMMISSIONER KANAVERSKIS: Commissioner
Kanaverskis, as far as security guards or police
officers what do you provide, you know, two officers
or one officer during the day or

MR. FAKHOURI: Yeah, so we will have physical
security live guard there during operating hours that
will be doing, you know, surveillance within the site
also perimeter surveillance so essentially, yeah, we

will have that in addition to high definition cameras
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throughout the building on the exterior of the
building looking into the parking lot as another, you
know, deterrent or ability to secure the facility and
premise. So it's covered both by cameras, safety
protocoels, security protocols as well as a live guard
that would be there.

COMMISSIONER KANAVERSKIS: Does the police
department have access to those cameras?

MR. FAKHOURI: Irina, do you know that one?

I think the --

MS. DASHEVSKY: Yes, the Illincis State
Police, yes, they have a direct feed into all the
cameras. They also have to essentially review the
security plans as part of being awarded the license
after build out so they'll be able to review the
number of cameras, the angles of cameras insuring
that the system of surveillance is adequate as well
as insuring that the security, the technical security
features such as restricted areas, key cards,
ingress, egress, all that is all aligned.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Commissioner Baksay

again. Mr. Fakhouri, will your proposed facility
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allow or I'm not sure what the right word is dispense
medical marijuana cards or is that not something that
your facility would handle?

MR. FAKHOURI: Unfortunately, no. This is an
adult use cannabis facility so we're not -- hopefully
in the future that changes and we will be able to.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Okay.

MR. FAKHOURI: But at this time no, it's not
permitted per the state law.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Got you. Okay. Thank
you.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: All right. Is that it for
the questions from the commissioners?

Is there anyone online who intends
to ask questions or provide testimony? If so, I'll
need to read the ground rules for speaking at public
hearings and you'll need to be sworn in.

MR. HALLORAN: So I just want to ask people
we've gotten a couple comments in the chat and Matt
Holmes, please correct me if you disagree on this,
but we've gotten a couple of comments in the chat and

I think it would be better if that person raises
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their hand, they already did, raises their hand and
speak. I think it would be easier to communicate
with the commissioners and any other questions along
with that. So if you are going to -- if you're
interested in talking please hit star 9 if you're on
your phone. If you're on Zoom please hit the raise
your hand function. I will allow you to speak. You
have to hit star 6 to unmute yourself.

MR. HOLMES: Sean, its fine. It might be
easy just to read the two chat comments that are up
but then you should also have everybody raise their
hand that wants to speak.

MR. HALLORAN: Okay.

MR. HOLMES: And also, I believe there was
some written comments that need to be read into the
record as you made that an option in the public
hearing as well.

MR. HALLORAN: Correct. Yeah, that's a good
point. We can lead off with the written comments.

MR. HOLMES: Sure.

MR. HALLORAN: If you're okay with that,

Matt?
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village planner received yesterday I'm going to read

it.

It also went to Village Manager Brian Pabst.

To whom it may concern, I am
writing in regard to the zoning
hearing January 12th, 2022 for
case number 22-01. Proposal is
to amend zoning to allow
cannabis dispensing organization
in Wingren Plaza also know as
Willowbrook Pla:za.

I am an employee at one of the
existing businesses writing on
my own behalf and I have
concerns related to such a
business being located in a
neighborhood suite. I
unfortunately cannot make the
zoning hearing but would like my
concerns heard.

Most of the cannabis
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dispensaries I have personally
seen are located in
free-standing buildings with
their own parking lots and
entrances. It's not uncommon
for dispensaries to have lines
for entrance at times.

Should this location have lines
forming there is potential for
disruption to entrance to
neighboring businesses. There
have also been reports of odor
permeation to neighboring
businesses when there are nearby
units. As we know cannabis has
a very potent odor even when not
burning and this is a great
concern when a -- with a gym and
medical office one and two doors
down.

There have been conflicting

studies published as to whether
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or not dispensaries can cause an
increase in crime where located.
Some studies have tied any
issues to actual location of the
site which unfortunately won't
come to light until after the
doors are open. As we all know
there has been a recent uptick
in crime in the suburbs
particularly affecting towns
with easy direct access to
highways. Unfortunately
Willowbrook has not been a
stranger to these crimes of
opportunity lately. There have
been several carjackings

within a block or two of this
location and have even been
smash and grabs to vehicles in
the Wingren Plaza parking lot.
The lighting in this lot is far

from adequate after sundown
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especially toward the west end
of the plaza which is where the
dispensary would be located.
This is also great concern for
employees as employee parking is
at the far back of the lot and
employees must walk through many
rows of cars and traffic to get
to their vehicles often alone at
night. Perhaps increased police
patrols are the answer to these
types of concerns but is that
really a viable option when
departments are already
stretched thin?

I think it also needs to be
brought to the committee's
attention that many of the
businesses in this plaza have a
large female clientele. You
have an upscale gym, a pilates

studio, a specialty chiropractor
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and multiple salons. There are
constantly women coming and
going to and from businesses in
the plaza often alone and that
should be considered from a
safety standpoint. To my
knowledge there are no cameras
or security system on the
Wingren property aside from any
interior cameras individual
businesses may have.

Wingren Plaza also as recently
as this past fall was having
parking issues in the main lot
in which it had to hire a
parking enforcement business to
try and get the issue under
control. There are times
especially when the gym has
classes that parking can already
get very scarce and be a

challenge.
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It is my hope all of these
concerns are taken into great
consideration during the zoning
hearing. Perhaps there is a
location better suited for

a dispensary where safety,
security and disruption to
neighboring businesses would be
less of a concern.

I end in stating with full
transparency that I am not anti
cannabis. I just really feel
that this is not an appropriate
location for a dispensary.
Having worked here for several
years I have seen firsthand some
of the issues with this plaza
and I'm also very familiar with
the current clientele of the
tenants. As stated above and I
will reiterate there are many

wellness businesses with a large
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female base as well as several
businesses with an older
demographic that should
absolutely be considered.
Sincerely, Jana L.

Yeah, that’'s the full name that T

have for her on this email so I hope that this is --

MR. HALLORAN: Regarding to who have had
their hand raised Sama, S-a-m-a, has had her hand
raised the longest so I will --

CHAIRMAN KOPP: You know, I'm going to read
the ground rules for public speaking. Public
hearings are sometimes emotional. Certain ground
rules must be followed so that everyone is treated

fairly and with courtesy. Your cooperation is

appreciated. The public hearing's interested parties

can ask questions and present testimony, testimony.
The public hearing should be based on facts and
specific reasons, so that was one. Two, interested
parties must be sworn in by the court reporter.
Three, at the beginning of your statement please

state your name, spell it and state your address if
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you wish. Four, speak clearly. Please direct all
questions and comments to the chairman or directed by
the chairman directed to the applicant. Five, be
courteous to others (inaudible audio} testimony.
Six, try to be brief. I may limit testimony that is
redundant and irrelevant. Speakers may not be
allowed to speak more than once until all speakers
have been allowed to speak. Seven, please note the
public testimony will be recorded by an audio
recording device as well as a court reporter. Eight,
you're encouraged to submit, well, this is moot at
that point. Nine, all documents submitted for the
hearing become the property of the village and are
available for inspection by anyone under the Freedom
of Information Act.

So okay. Go ahead, Sean.

MR. HALLORAN: So Sama, S-a-m-a, you had your
hand raised (inaudible audio) to talk. Please hit
star 6 to unmute yourself. We can hear you, I
believe. Yep, we can hear you, Sama. Can you hear
us?

A VOICE: It appears to be a technical issue.
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MR. HALLORAN: Sama, we can hear you. If you
can hear us please let us know or we'll go to the
next person.

Okay. Jacquie Fowler.

MS. FOWLER: Can you hear me?

MR. HALLORAN: Yep, we can hear you.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: You'll need to be sworn in.
I'm sorry, you'll need to be sworn in first.

MS. FOWLER: Sure.

(Whereupon the witness was duly
sworn. )
JACQUIE FOWLER,
having been first duly sworn, by the Notary,
testified as follows:

MS. FOWLER: Thank you. 8o I am, I'm the
owner of the Orangetheory Fitness studio in the
plaza. 1I've been there for almost eight years and I
appreciate entrepreneurs moving into the plaza. I
think I would welcome new neighbors. Having said
that there are a couple of things that we've talked
about tonight that are a concern that raise questions

for me.
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First is related to the parking and
I share your thoughts. When I first moved in there I
thought parking would not be an issue. I can assure
you it has been a very significant issue over the
past several months to the point where people coming
to my class couldn't find a place to park and I don't
know who wrote the letter but they were correct that
they brought in some parking enforcement and
designated employee parking spots which are very much
on the periphery of the parking lot and it seems to
have gotten better but parking is not -- I mean it
definitely has been an issue.

And then the other thing I would
say is there have been break ins in the plaza and
it's not just this plaza. I own several Orangetheory
Fitnesses and we've had this issue in many of them
but break ins at, you know, 5:30, 6 in the morning
and at night and I agree that the lighting in the
plaza while we've kind of worked to put it on timers
that working with seasonal changes and daylight
savings it's not perfect and it is a concern for

staff and for members and I think so that is another
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challenge that or another question I would throw out
there what sorts of additional security would be in
place.

There really are nc external
cameras in that plaza. I have internal cameras and
I've been asked by the police on several occasions to
provide video footage for the break in at AT & T or
other issues in the plaza so that is definitely a gap
in terms of the security system.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Okay.

MR. HALLORAN: I think that, I believe she
also had, I just want to make sure all the comments
are being read into the record, parking has been an
issue in the plaza (inaudible audio) there have been
break ins, what security will be in place. So those
are gquestions I just want to make sure.

The next person to -- that has
their hand raised is Imam Hassan Aly. I apologize if
I mispronounced that. Please hit start 6 to unmute.

MR. HASSAN ALY: Yes, can you hear me?

MR. HATLLORAN: Yes.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Yes, you'll need to be sworn
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in, sir.
{(Whereupon the witness was duly
sworn. )
HASSAN ALY,
having been first duly sworn, by the Notary,
testified as follows:

MR. ALY: Okay. My name is Hassan Aly. I'm
serving as the imam and director of the Mecca Center
located on 91st Street in Willowbrook. We've been
here in Willowbrook for over 20 years. Actually this
year we will celebrate --

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Can you hold on for one
second? Is there a way to turn the volume up? I can
barely hear him.

(Unknown voices speaking.)

A VOICE: Yes, the worship center on 91st
street, the Islamic Mecca Center.

A VOICE: Can you try now?

CHAIRMAN KOPP: I'm sorry, sir, can you speak
again? We turned the volume up so we're hoping we
can hear you better.

MR. ALY: Okay. Okay.

METRO REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 690-0050




10

11

12

13

14

15

le

17

18

19

20

21

22

43

CHATRMAN KOPP: Much better.

MR. ALY: So once again my name is Hassan
Aly. I'm serving as the imam and director of Mecca
Center located on 91st Street here in Willowbrook.
We've been here in Willowbrook for 20 years. This
year actually the 2022 we will celebrate our 20 years
of service in Willowbrook. We used to be on 720
Plainfield Road, Willowbrook before we moved to our
building here community center. We moved here
actually in 2017 so it's been five years in this new
building.

In our center we struggle to try
our best to raise fund for community members, local
community members to provide services to our
communities at large not only to the Muslim community
and so we have a full-size professional size gym with
basketball court and what have you and a kitchen and
a multipurpose room and a cafeteria and other things.

Now many people since we started
our services started to actually move to the area
here to Willowbrook. Why? Because we are trying to

provide more services particularly to the Muslim
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community. Many of them actually paid overpriced
houses and they paid the taxes even though it's
higher than other places because they love the area.
And the reason why we choose this area, the reason
why we choose Willowbrook is because it's safe area
and it's family friendly and we feel that this is
perhaps one of the best places to invest millions of
dollars to build this building for the community at
large and particularly for things.

Now there is many studies found a
clear association between marijuana dispensaries and
increases in rates of c¢rime and disorder in
neighborhoods in many states including Denver,
Colorado. Shortly after Colorado made it legal for
the retail sales of marijuana some studies by
researchers at the University of Colorado, Denver
appears in Justice Quarterly which is a publication
of Academy of Criminal Justice Sciences say that we
found the neighborhocods with one or more medical or
recreational dispensary saw increased crime rates
that were between 26 and 1,452 percent higher than in

neighborhoods without any commercial marijuana
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activity. And this was in other states, different
states and different places find crime increased near
new marijuana dispensaries.

And the qgquestion here is do we
really want to change the beautiful demographic that
we built here in this community, in this beautiful
city or Village of Willowbrook? Do we want to really
make people who are trying to move every day every
night to a secure, nice, safe place for them and for
their families, a secure, nice place to raise their
children and to raise their youth without really any
distraction by any of these activities? Do we want
to have them and increase the number or we want to
just focus on one shop that perhaps would increase
the tax benefit for the village but also from one
other hand -- from another hand this will also
discourage and perhaps will ask -- will even make
some other families think about leaving the city of
the Village of Willowbrook and move to different
places.

So I really ask all of you to

rethink about this because this is not an easy
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decision for us and this may change a lot of the good
great intention of the people who are even thinking
of moving every day every night to our neighborhood.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Thank you.

MR. HALLORAN: We are going to try, we only
have one person who has their hand raised and it's
Sama. She wrote in the chat this is (inaudible
audio) I would like to speak against it. I'm going
to try and -- I believe you have the ability to
unmute yourself right now. Yes. You are unmuted.

A VOICE: Is this for (inaudible audio)?

MR. HALLORAN: Yes, we can hear you.

A VOICE: Yes, this is (inaudible audio).

I'm a physician. I'm a gastroenterologist. For
those of us --

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Excuse me, you'll need to be
sworn in.

A VOICE: Yes, I'm raising my hand. I do.

(Whereupon the witness was duly

sworn. )
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UNKNOWN PERSON,
having been first duly sworn, by the Notary,
testified as follows:

A VOICE: Thank you. Again, my name is
(inaudible audio). I'm a physician and I be living
in the area since 1979. 1I'm a gastroenterologist.
For those of us who might not understand the
gastroenterologist do is heal with taking care of
digestive system and that mean the stomach, the
intestine and so forth.

I want to point to the fact that
although 700 feet sound too much for kids and for
adults during summertime it's not a big deal. I been
told this is a cash business and I been told the only
-- only in the sense limitation for buying is to be
below the age of 21. So it's very easy for anyone
who is younger than that to buy from different one
and use it.

Now it comes to the field of
gastroenterology. There has been definite
association between something we call it cyclic

vomiting and between smoking marijuana. Cyclic
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vomiting is a sickness affect the youth in their 18,
20 and early 20, female more than male. It cause
nausea, vomiting, abdominal pain intermittently in a
sense they might have symptom for seven days then
goes away.

In fact, just today I have a young
lady about 28 years old. She just had a miscarriage
about two months ago she came with these symptoms and
the last thing I would like for my community to have
a store open is inviting (inaudible audio) 18, 17,
19, 21 to use it because it's free although 21 is for
it but youth has no in a sense limitation when they
want something to use it.

We're in an area, thank God, we're
doing well. We pay taxes. We don't want to hurt our
community just to have extra pennies for our village.
Please vote against it. We don't like it. It's not
good for the community. It's not good for our kids.
It's not good for our future. Let's do a little bit
of business not this kind of business. Thank vyou.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Thank you. Is there anyone

else?
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MR. HALLORAN: We have one person Omar
Dweydari. Please hit star 6, Omar.

MR. DWEYDARI: Can you hear me?

MR. HALLORAN: Yes.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: You'll need to be sworn in,
Mr. Dweydari.

MR. DWEYDARI: This is Omar Dweydari.
(Whereupon the witness was duly
sworn. )

OMAR DWEYDART,
having been first duly sworn, by the Notary,
testified as follows:

MR. DWEYDARI: This i1s Omar Dweydari. I am
the owner of Kabob Q which is at the same plaza also
just recently opened an addition store is called
Pizza Q where substitute the old Papa John's store.

The plaza has been, it's been
extremely busy recently and we've been having problem
with parking. We also been having problem with the
-- a lot of recently we have been having lot of
(inaudible audio) outside the area.

Now I believe this type of business
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will bring people from out of the area who does not
belong to the area and I'm the type of person who
does not believe in I'm against smoking, I'm against
marijuana and I believe this will be negative for the
society's kids including my kids who is teenagers and
adults age also but when you bring this, when it
becomes available in the area it's like inviting, vou
know, them to smoke it or to try it.

Please vote against it. This will
hurt my business. This will hurt the people in
Willowbrook and around Willowbrook. We are bringing
the beast into our home area. Please vote against
this. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Thank you.
MR. HALLORAN: We have one hand Sheree H.
Star --
MS. SHEREE H: What do I have to do? Star --
CHAIRMAN KOPP: You need to be sworn in.
{Whereupon the witness was duly

sworn. )
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SHEREE HUSSATIN,
having been first duly sworn, by the Notary,
testified as follows:

MS. SHEREE H: My name is Sheree Hussain
(phonetic). My family has lived in this area right
here in Willowbrook since 2003 and I'm also just a
community member, do various volunteering in the
community. I'm also the vice president here at the
Mecca Center and you just heard from Imam Hassan Aly
and just kind of just continuing what he was saying
about youth I just did want to say that even though
you do have to be 18 to get cannabis it's very easy
for high school students, you know, to just have a
friend go in and get what they need so, you know,
there is an age, minimum age but it's very easy for
kids and it's just very, very close to the high
school, it's close to all of our youth centers and so
it's not -- it's such a family atmosphere here so
yeah, I can see how it might have a place somewhere
but not in this particular community with such a
family atmosphere and that's what I want to say.

Thank you so much so I really hope
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we are going to vote against it. Thank you so much
for listening.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Thank you.

MR. HALLORAN: As of right now there are no
other hands raised.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: I would like to ask Karen
about the parking again because that keeps coming up.
So what we do every business in the shopping center
we look at what their parking allotment is and you
add it up and so I guess they're more successful than
we anticipated.

MS. STONEHQUSE: Yes, but I know that this
was looked at from the last business that was going
to go into that space. Was it a Dunkin?

A VOICE: Restaurant.

MS. STONEHOUSE: It was a restaurant use.

And they did a, you know, a detailed list of every
business that was in there and what their -- because
they have different regquirements per square foot, you
know, for a restaurant use versus like a gym or a
retail store or something and the restaurant had it

gone in would have required a great deal more
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parking. I think it was maybe one spot per 250 feet
as opposed to one per like a thousand square feet.
Don't quote me on that but it needed at least twice
as much for the restaurant use and it was the
existing site parking did exceed what would have been
needed had the restaurant use gone in considering all
the other businesses that were there so this retail
use would require less parking, if that makes sense.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Okay.

MS. STONEHOUSE: Now I'm all about solutions
and I wonder if there might be a way to utilize the
drive through space because it's not being used at
all for employee parking or something, you know, for
a period of time, you know, one car in front of the
other where they don't have to get in and out easily.
I don't know but it's something that we haven't heard
from the building owner. I don't know if the
applicant has talked to the building owner about it
but we haven't heard any concerns about that
expressed until now.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: I'm sorry, I have two

additional questions for you, Mr. Fakhouri. First
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will there be any situation where the cannabis is 1lit
speaking (inaudible audio) where it's lit in the
premises? Because nobody samples it there.
(Unknown voice speaking.)

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Nobody smokes it there. T
assume the employees are not supposed to smoke it.

MR. FAKHOURI: This is Omar here. Absolutely
not. So any consumption of cannabis on site in the
parking lot is illegal so it's not allowed. That's
why we, yvou know, so whether in the store -- so there
are consumption lounges. This isn't a consumption
lounge. This is strictly a retail store where
someone will go in and purchase and then exit and
then consume in their own private place. So no,
there's no use on site.

In addition, if somebody even
attempted to use, again, we have security available
monitoring the parking lot, make sure there isn't any
loitering. So that's, I don't see that as an issue
there.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: The other question is do you

have some sort of lease that's conditioned? Have you

METRO. REPORTING SERVICE, LTD., WHEATON, ILLINOIS
(630) 620-0050




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

55

signed a leased that's conditioned on this approval?

MR. FAKHOURI: Yeah. Yeah.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Okay.

MR. HALLORAN: So just a comment, Matt, so we
haven't closed the public hearing. We have received
some additional hands.

MR. HOLMES: Yeah, because the public hearing
ig still open we should be maybe taking any more
public comments until we say, you know, are there any
more public comments and we have a no then we take a
motion to close the public hearing but because we
didn't do that any public comments that are coming in
now should still be allowed.

And we should also read anything
that's in the chat room out loud and then probably
close the chat room as well because those are being
public comments whether we would like them to be or
not.

MR. HALLORAN: Okay. So we got the
additional comment that we got in the chat my name is
Mohamad Natafgi and can I speak from Noble Icon, LLC?

He has his hand raised. I will allow him to talk
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right now.

MR. NATAFGI: Yes.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: You'll need to be sworn in,
sir.

MR. NATAFGI: I've been notified by the
village about this hearing --

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Excuse me, sir.

MR. NATAFGI: {Continuing) -- because I own a
house on 75th Street.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Excuse me, sir. You'll need
to be sworn in first.

MR. NATAFGI: My name is Mohamad Natafgi.
Yeah, I do swear. I say the truth nothing --

(Whereupon the witness was duly
SWOTT. )
MOHAMAD NATAFGI,

having been first duly sworn, by the Notary,
testified as follows:

THE REPORTER: And could you spell your name,
please?

MR. NATAFGI: Mohamad Natafgi. I represent

Noble Icon, LLC. I been notified about this hearing
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from the village and I agree with Imam Hassan this is
going to make problem to the area and we don't like
this to be happen in this area in this community,
nice community. I live in the same area too. My
daughter going to be across the street so I do agree
with Imam Hassan Aly and all the other. We vote
against it. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Thank you.

MR. HALLORAN: I believe we heard from Sheree
H already.

A VOICE: Yes, we have.

MR. HALLORAN: I think in the rules that you
outlined you only had one opportunity to speak.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: No, everyone gets the chance
to speak first before someone can speak twice.

MR. HALLORAN: Okay. I'm sorry, Sheree, here
you go.

SHEREE H: Oh, I'm sorry, I think I raised my
hand by mistake.

MR. HALLORAN: Oh. We have no hands raised.

CHAIRMAN KCPP: All right. So Mr. Fakhouri,

you now have the opportunity to speak last if you
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want to to respond to anything that's said and to
make any sort of closing statement.

MR. FAKHOURI: Sure. So again, definitely
welcome the opportunity to be able to respond to the
concerns obviocusly hearing from the community
(inaudible audio), right? You know, cannabis can be
somewhat of a touchy subject and there's concerns. I
want to make sure we talk about them and address them
to hopefully alleviate those concerns.

So I have been taking notes I want
to go kind of go through kind of one by one to at
least kind of provide some feedback on kind of what's
been raised.

So one of the first items was in
regards to, you know, facility should be in a free
standing building versus a multi tenant building.
Dispensaries exist in both. They exist in multi
tenant. They exist in single tenant buildings. They
exist in industrial warehouses. That's not really --
there's no sort of standard or baseline for that. As
an operator I don't have an issue being in a multi

tenant building. It doesn't change how I operate.
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What's really important is operating in compliance
with the law and operating with, you know, safe,
safety and security and making sure that we're being
good neighbors in that area. So in terms of multi
tenant, single tenant I don't really see that being
an issue. I think there's a couple multi tenant
buildings in Chicago. There's a Sunnyside and a
MOCA. There's one in Lombard. There's one in
Oakbrook Terrace but, you know, there's a number of
dispensaries that operate in multi tenant buildings.
Someone else had mentioned or there
was a comment regarding lines. And while I don't
anticipate lines, you know, we do have a number of
different operational set ups to alleviate that risk.
S0 one, from a technology standpoint and then two,
just in terms of the layout. 8o in our facility
we'll have a waiting room so in the event there's an
influx of people that did happen to come in at the
same time, you know, we do have a waiting room so
people could que inside. Additionally we have, you
know, we will be maximizing the number of point of

sale systems so that customers can get in and out
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relatively quickly. Again sets up our operations so
that we can move things efficiently.

And then from a technology
standpoint there are a lot of these orders that are
done online, they're preorder. Definitely push for
that. It's a convenient way for people to order and
it does speed up the transaction time and it also,
you know, sets us up to be able to notify customers
when their order is ready. So once they submit the
order online we'll package it on site, you know,
behind the scenes in terms of the packing area, that
product will be ready, we'll notify the customer
saying hey, it's ready for pick up, they come in,
grab it, close out their receipt and they are out the
door. So there's a number of different ways that we
speed up the transaction to make sure that we are
running efficiently.

Also just in terms of the concept
of lines I think when adult use first passed in
Illinois I think over a year ago now there were tons
of people that were interested and there was a lot of

hype around, you know, it was a big deal. People
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wanted to go and visit. Now you really don't see
that as much and there are a lot more sites coming
online and people, customers have options and so I
don't really see that as being something that -- I
think we mitigate any risk there in terms of lines
forming.

Another comment in terms of odor.
So it's a good question. I mean obviously cannabis
has a very distinct odor. That said, a couple things
when product is delivered to a dispensary from a
cultivator, from a craft grower it has to be sealed
in an odor proof container and then it's shipped to
our facility and we receive it. So there's no
packaging that goes on online. There's no making of
any products. So the amount of odor is very minimal
because of that statement there. Everything isg
prepackaged and sealed in containers.

In the event there was -- there ig
some odor we are taking some additional measures so
we'll have our own stand alone HVAC system specific
to our unit. It doesn't connect to the adjacent

suite. There are carbon filters that will be
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installed as well to, you know, for any exhaust that
goes out to sgcrub any type of odor that is possible.
So in other words unique in a sense that they set up
the laws where there actually isn't much odor in a
dispensary, that's more on the cultivation side.
We'll be going above and beyond in terms of the HVAC
system and having carbon air scrubbers until we can
get that.

So I think there's a number of
comments just in terms of crime and let me just go
and say this first safety and security is number one
for us, for our staff, for our customers and, you
know, the way the state has set this up the security
measures and protocols that are in place are
unmatched. I mean I talked a bit about we do have
cameras. There's going to be cameras throughout the
building and on the exterior of the building and
really that does serve as a deterrent. So anybody
that did want to commit a crime they're going to see
a lot of security in addition to a physical guard
that will be outside.

So I hear the comments there's been
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some historical uptick in crime. I don't know that's
-- I haven't really seen that here in Willowbrook but
I think our security measures that are in place
actually serves as a deterrent and I think actually
might even help that cause if there are something
that's going on in that plaza or adjacent property.

MS. DASHEVSKY: Hey, Omar?

MR. FAKHOURI: Yeah.

MS. DASHEVSKY: If I can just add on to the
security features and explain that cannabis products
can't really be out on the floor. Customers aren't
going to be able to sort of touch and open and tool
around. There's not like shelves that are stocked.
Everything the dispensing happens in back of house by
law and only an amount that's adequate for daily
dispensing comes out from the vault. Everything else
ig in a highly secured vault with specifications
against, these things have like crazy metrics against
fire, against being drilled, all sorts of stuff and
it's called a high security area of the dispensary
meaning not even most employees have clearance for

it, only the highest level managers, and you roll out
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just enough product they need for the day. The rest
of the inventory is held in secured storage which has
been locked during the entirety of the day. So again
if needed someone can access it to get more inventory
but that product is just not available. So the
concept of a smash and grab a ton of cannabis
products isn't really a viable one.

Similarly with cash there's kind of
protocols that need to be approved. Yes, it's a cash
business. Most of the cash is kept in a separate
safe with similar security features and I'll just add
that Illinois I'm starting to see come online
different tech options to mitigate some of the cash
issues whether it's sort of being able to use your
checking card due to various tech solutions that come
from independent sources not like a federal bank card
but we are starting to see more technology based
transactions in the state.

MR. FAKHOURI: I just kind of, the safety and
security piece I think lighting was also discussed.
So again as a state requirement our security cameras

that are inside and outside there has to be
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sufficient lighting for those to be workable and to
be able to really zone in and see some facial
recognition so the state is already doing dictating
that that is a requirement that the lighting has to
be sufficient so that we can view facial recognition
on those cameras inside and outside. So we're happy
to abide by that, you know, in terms of lighting.
More lighting the better for us as well.

And we talked a little bit about
the parking piece already and I kind of explained in
terms of our processes how we do run an efficient
order fulfillment process using technology and online
ordering and just really maximizing our point of
sales transactions (inaudible audio). So I think
that's kind of already been touched on there.

So it was actually one of the other
comments sort of highlighted that the plaza is really
has a large presence of female clientele. There's a
salon there. There's a gym there. I will say that
cannabis dispensary has clientele all different
types. I think our fastest growing segment ig the

female elderly community and I see a chiropractor and
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I see a salon. Those are wellness type products and
services. Cannabis ig a wellness product. People
use it for their own personal wellness and I see that
actually being complimentary or consistent with that
process.

You know and I think people and
again I feel strongly about that, you know, I think
people's personal decision I think, you know, my goal
isn't to argue whether cannabis should be legal or
not legal. 1It's already been passed. It's already
legal. The village has already allowed it as a
special use. You know, the guestion is hey, is that
a suitable location and I actually think it's a great
location and it's consistent with the surrounding
uses there so

Let me see what other comments that
were brought up. Again, you know, to my potential
neighbors in the plaza I'm happy to continue the
dialogue. I will be a good neighbor. I'm happy to
work together as issues arise and, you know, I'm in
here for the long haul, looking to be a long-term

tenant, hope to expand to additional locations there,
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fully committed to the site.

There's a lot of risk on me not
operating in compliance of the law, all right, so if
I don't I loge my license and that's a huge, huge
loss for me. So acting in compliance with the law,
making sure that we have a safe and secure operation
and premise is a minimum requirement for me and
that's definitely the standard and we'll meet that.

As far as selling, you know, the
impact on youth we don't condone youth usage of
cannabis. There is a strict requirement of 21 and
over. You must show an ID. It must be valid and the
theory of hey, people might have somebody that's 21
and then sell it to somebody that's underage. One,
there's a requirement, a limitation as to how much
cannabis somebody can actually purchase. 8o the idea
of somebody buying in bulk and giving it to it
doesn't -- there's a limitation on how much they can
actually buy.

And there are neighboring
communities that have cannabis. We have not seen an

issue, an uptick of usage with any youth. So I
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think, you know, the particles that are in place
essentially alleviate that risk and again we are in
support of it. So we're all in alignment. We don't
want that, right, so I think we're all on the same
page in terms of hey, let's discuss on how we address
agree it and a lot of (inaudible audio) does address
it.

MS. DASHEVSKY: Omar, just to add here the ID
checking equipment plugs into a main state system so
to insure it's not fake IDs. It's not someone just
looking at an ID. It's actually a machine that one
must run the ID through and, you know, usually
typically I think it's against the law for someone to
buy a quantity at the max that a person can hold and
then return that same day to that dispensary. 8o
that ID tracking equipment tracks that tooc which I
think speaks to mitigating the notion that you can
have someone of age come in at least to one location.
I can't -- I'm not certain whether, you know, that
will ping in every dispensary in Illinois or all the
nearby ones but certainly you're not going to be able

to pull that twice in one locatiomn.
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MR. FAKHOURI: So I think I addressed a lot
of the concerns. Again, I'm happy to have the
opportunity of being able to address it and having
sort of that dialogue. Again, I'm super excited
about the prospect of opening up. I think it's a
great opportunity for me. 1It's a great opportunity
for the village and, you know, look at, very excited
to be an asset to the community if we can move
forward on this.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Chairman Kopp, may I
ask a follow-up question?

CHATRMAN KOPP: Sure.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: So based on all the
public comments this is regarding parking in the
Wingren Plaza, is it, I just want to make sure I
understand correctly, this business would require 16
parking places, is that correct?

MS. STONEHOUSE: I would have to double check
that and get their exact square footage and I can
check on that.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: I believe it's in the

report, right?
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CHAIRMAN KOPP: It's 16 restaurant required.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Okay. So my guestion
is if the business requires 16, this is Commissioner
Baksay I apologize for not saying that for the
record, if the business requires 16 and I believe,
Mr. Fakhouri, you said there could be up to eight
employees at, you know, maybe their peak hours or on
a shift are those eight employees using eight of the
16 allowed parking places or is that separate from
employee parking?

MS. STONEHOUSE: This is Karen. There is no
additional requirement for employee parking. It's
all inclusive in the parking requirements.

COMMISSTIONER BAKSAY: Thank you. So here is
my question and maybe it's for Chairman Kopp or
you, Ms. Stonehouse, is there any way for this
commission should after voting we approve this could
we make it conditional where if it's demonstrated
that the and pardon my use of math here, you know,
I'm an engineer so I kind of estimate, right, so if
you're allotted 16 parking spots and you're regularly

using eight of those for your own store front
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employees, your own retail employees if other
businesses in the plaza can demonstrate that Mint LLC
is regularly overusing their allotment of parking
places is there any vehicle or mechanism by which we
can go back as a planning commission six months later
and say that space that's currently not planned to be
demolished that is the drive through area can we make
approval contingent upon some study to be performed
within the next 180 days on, you know, parking and
overuse of parking?

MR. HALLORAN: This is Assistant
Administrator Halloran, I'd like to get Village
Attorney Matt Holmes's opinion on that before staff
answers.

MR. HOLMES: I didn't understand what you
said, Sean. Did you say you wanted my opinion on
that?

MR. HALLORAN: Yeah, regarding the condition
that Commissioner Baksay is outlining.

MR. HOLMES: I mean I'm not exactly sure how
parking is calculated on a collective basis in a mall

like this. We can of course if there are issues with
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parking look at alternative plans to modify the site
whether that be removing the drive through or
something else but I'm not sure that -- I mean this
is a recommending body only. You could recommend
that the village board make it conditional on other
types of parking or restrictions but it's nothing
that would kind of revert back to here for additional
consideration later if that makes sense.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Understood. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: All right. Will someone make
a motion to close the public hearing?

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: So moved.

MR. HOLMES: Mr. Chairman, before you do that
you should note there is someone with their hand up
again.

MR. HALLORAN: There is one person left.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: T mean --

MR. HOLMES: All right. I'm just saying we
didn't close the public hearing again so I would
recommend letting them speak.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: My instructions from you were

that the applicant gets to rebut and then I close the
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public hearing.

MR. HOLMES: Yep.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: So if we let the person speak

Mr. Fakhouri gets to rebut their --

speak.

speak.

sir.

MR. HOLMES: Yep.

CHATRMAN KOPP: All right. Let's let them

MR. HALLORAN: Mr, Atassi, you are allowed to

MR. ATASSI: Can you hear me?
MR. HALL.ORAN: Yes.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: You'll need toc be sworn in,

MR. ATASSI: Yes, go ahead, please.
(Whereupon the witness was duly
sworn. )

SALAM ATASST,

having been first duly sworn, by the Notary,

testified as follows:

MR. ATASSI: My name is Salam Atassi,

A-t-a-g-s-i. I been living in this area for last 30

years.

I'm also a local businessman in the area for
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the last 23 years.

I visit the plaza quite often. I
visit the Kabob Q. I get my haircut. I go to the
Stretch Zone. I go to the FedEx. Every time I go
there is always a parking problem. I have to circle
couple times to park, find parking. That's one
issue. Second issue is the Village of Willowbrook is
doing financially okay. I don't think the wvillage it
needed this kind of tax revenue, that shady tax
revenue. I would recommend not to vote for to accept
this. My third comment is that this area right here
it's a family oriented area, mostly families with
young children they go to school locally, mostly
older people and they live here in this area.

So my question is to Mr. Fakhouri
who you are marketing your products to. This is a
community area and mostly young children, older
family. I recommend you to withdraw your application
and get marketed somewhere else outside the Village
of Willowbrook. I would appreciate it. The village
I would appreciate not to approve this project.

Thank you so much.
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CHAIRMAN KOPP: Thank you. I don't know if
you wanted to, again, you get the opportunity to
speak last if you want to.

MR. FAKHOURI: Again, I appreciate the
feedback and I appreciate people’'s copinion. I think
it's a sensitive subject to some people but the
majority of people want cannabis. They use it for
wellness. They use it for their own prersonal
wellness and while some people might not be for it it
is legal in the State of Illinois and people benefit
from it and I (inaudible audio) and not withdraw it .

CHATRMAN KOPP: Someone make a motion to
close the public hearing.

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: So moved.

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Second.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: 1I'd ask the plan commission
secretary to call the vote.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Baksay.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kanaverskis?

COMMISSIONER KANAVERSKIS: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kaczmarek?
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COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Raucky?
COMMISSIONER KAUCKY: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Walec?
COMMISSICNER WALEC: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Vice Chairman Wagner?
VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: And Chairman Kopp?
CHAIRMAN KOPP: Yes.

All right. So now the public
hearing is closed. There will be no further
testimony and the plan commission will discuss and
vote on the application.

It's obviously for me my vote, what
my vote would be. 1It's obviously a somewhat
controversial issue but it's a legal product.

As far as the parking I frankly
think that's up to the landlord and tenants to figure
out.

So I am in favor of this. TI'm
going to vote in favor of this. I don't know if

anybody else wanted to speak or if I should --
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COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Yeah, I can speak.
This is Kaczmarek. I'm alsc in favor of this with
the consideration again with parking that seems to be
a subject brought up multiple times that has to be
considered or spoken with as mentioned with tenants
and the landlord but also the other issue that was
mentioned too is the lighting in the parking area.
Is that something that we can consider or approve in
the area the parking lot just for, you know, for
safety measures (inaudible audio)? Otherwise I'm for
it.

COMMISSIONER KANAVERSKIS: Commissioner
Kanaverskis, as far as where I work up on the north
side of the village, one village up there they
disapproved it but six other wvillages around that
area approved them so they're surrounded by
dispensaries so they didn't get the benefit of the
revenue that it's going to bring in to the village.
So we could disapprove it and not allow it but yet
across the street there could be one going up and we
wouldn't benefit from the revenues coming in and it

is legal.
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VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Commissioner Wagner, T
heard a couple things that I think may or may not
have been clear with the public. Clearly it's 21 and
over with ID approved by the State of Illinocis. One
of the comments was that it was 18 and it could be
high school of course it's not so that should be
clear.

As far as parking goes you have met
the village requirement as far as I can see from the
staff calculation. I don't think you should be
susceptible to anything more or less than what we
have as a zoning requirement.

The only thing I would suggest is
that apparently I would assume that you're leasing
this section of the building you're also leasing the
use of the drive through. Maybe you could have four
employees, looks like you have three lanes, you
probably could get two cars in each lane but you
might be using the one next to the building for
yvour deliveries being on the west. So maybe you
could use four of those spaces just as a courtesy

to the rest of the facility but I wouldn't make it
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a requirement.

I think that the shopping center
probably will benefit from the security or the
additional security you're required to use by the
state.

And as far as lighting goes I
think that you'll probably have to meet whatever
requirements the state has for the cameras and so
forth but I think also the property owner that
you're leasing from should correct the lighting
issues on the property. If the lights aren't
coming on because someone didn't set a timer
somebody needs to fix the timer.

But as far as that goes on I
think you have met the requirements of the village
the way it's written and it would be encouraged for
your use.

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Commissioner Baksay,
I'm in favor of allowing the buginess and my
recommendation would be as stated earlier at this
meeting whether it's this body or the village

board that would consider maybe modifying the
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village code to put in some location restrictions
for, you know, potential future cannabis
dispensaries under the special use permit section
to implement location restrictions on schools,
educational facilities, churches, houses of
worship, et cetera commensurate with tobacco,
alcohol or amusement devices, you know, something
in between (inaudible audio) that would be the
additional thing and several commissioners have
addressed the parking and I agree with that.
That's all of my comments.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: All right. Will someone

make a motion based on the submitted petition and

testimony presented I move that the plan commission

forward its findings of fact to the mayor and
village board for the special use described in
the staff report and attachments prepared for the
January 12th, 2022 plan commission for --
COMMISSIONER KAUCKY: Commissioner Kaucky,
so moved.
VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Second.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: Okay. 22-01 and recommend
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approval of the special use subject for the
recommended use.

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: I'll second that.

CHAIRMAN KOPP: I'd ask the plan commission
secretary to call the vote.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Baksay?

COMMISSIONER BAKSAY: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commigsioner Kanaverskis?

COMMISSIONER KANAVERSKIS: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commigsioner Kaczmarek?

COMMISSIONER KACZMAREK: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Kaucky?

COMMISSIONER KAUCKY: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Commissioner Walec?

COMMISSIONER WALEC: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: Vice Chairman Wagner?

VICE CHAIRMAN WAGNER: Yes.

MS. SHEMROSKE: And Chairman Kopp?

CHATRMAN KOPP: Yes. All right. Thank you,
Kim,

(Whereupon the public hearing

was concluded at 8:30 p.m.)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF K A N E )

I, KIMBERLEE A. ELLIOTT, being first duly
sworn on oath says that she is a court reporter doing
business in the County of Kane and State of Illinois;
that she reported in shorthand the testimony given at
said hearing aforesaid; that the foregoing is a true
and correct transcript of her shorthand notes so
taken as aforesaid, and contains all the testimony so

given at said hearing.

v]d/;vafhﬂb&ca - %&"é

Notary Public, Kane County, IL
CSR # 084-003093
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Plan Commission Date:

Prepared By:

Case Title:

Applicant:

Action Requested:

Purpose:
Location:

PiNs:

Existing Zoning:
Proposed Zoning:

Existing Land Use:

April 6, 2022
Eunice Im, Planning Consultant

Gower West Elementary School Addition and Site Improvements (Special
Use)

Gower West School District No. 62,
7700 Clarendon Hills Road, Willowbrook, IL 60527

Consideration of a petition for approval of special use permit to allow the
existing Gower West Elementary School building, a 18,601 square foot,
one-story addition to the building, expansion and improvements to the
existing parking lots, addition of a new parking lot, addition of a new
children’s playground, and general site and landscaping improvements in
the R-1 Zoning District; approval of a Final Plat of Subdivision to consolidate
the two-lot property; and consideration of other such relief, exceptions,
and variations from Title 9 and Title 10 of the Village Code.

To expand an existing elementary school.

7650 Clarendon Hills Road, Willowbrook IL 60527.

09-27-409-016 and 09-27-409-001

R-1 Single Family Residence District

R-1 Single Family Residence District

Public and Quasi Public

Property Size: 8.58 Acres
Surrounding Land Use:
Use Zoning
North Multiple Family Residential (Farmingdale Terrace Condos) R-5
South Single Family Residential R-3
East Single Family Residential R-2
Woest Single-Family Residential R-3
Necessary Actlon by Open Public Hearing, accept testimony, and approve a recommendation to
Plan Commission: the Village Board.
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Documents Attached:

Attachment 1: Application for Planning Review, dated 01.03.22
Attachment 2; Architectural Plans 01.03.22

Attachment 3: Civil Zoning Submittal 03.07.22

Attachment 4: Subdivision Plat 05.24.21

Attachment 5: Historic Site Traffic Circulation

Attachment 6: Current Site Traffic Circulation

Attachment 7: Future Site Traffic Circulation

Attachment 8: EEA Traffic Memorandum 07.30.21

Attachment 9: EEA Traffic Review Responses 07.30.21
Attachment 10: BLA Traffic Response

Attachment 11: Zoning and Subdivision Code Requirements and Departures
Attachment 12: Photometric Plan dated 03.09.22

Attachment 13: Landscaping Plans 07.30.21

Attachment 14: Stormwater Comments from Christopher B. Burke
Attachment 15: Fire Review Letters

Attachment 16: Public Hearing Notice
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Development Proposal

Overview

Gower School District 62 is requesting from the Village of Willowbrook (“Village”) the approval of a one-story
18,601 square foot addition on the south end of the existing elementary school facility, an extension of the
east parking lot with an additional southeast parking lot, and a new sixty-four foot (64) by fifty foot {50°)
outdoor early childhood playground on the northerly side of the early childhood classrooms. Furthermore, the
project encompasses improvements to the on-site drop-off and pick-up areas including a masonry dumpster
enclosure on the west side of the building, a reconfiguration of the existing sports field, and general site and
landscaping improvements at Gower West Elementary School, located at 7650 Clarendon Hills Road,
Willowbrook, llinois. (See Attachment 1, Application for Planning Review). In November 2020, Gower School
District 62 {“School District”) approved a $15 million bond referendum for renovating and expanding the School
District’s two schools. The bond proceeds would fund building a new full-size gymnasium, a STEM lab, new
music room, art room, and new parking lots. (See Attachments 2 & 3, Architectural Plans and Civil Zoning

Submittal).

The School District is also seeking Final Subdivision Plat approval to consolidate the two lots located at 7650
Clarendon Hills Road with PINs: 09-27-409-001 and 09-27-409-016 (“subject property”) into a single lot of
record. (See Attachment 4, Subdivision Plat).

Summary of Requests:

1. A special use permit for an elementary school located on Clarendon Hills Road.

2. Consolidation of the subject property through the approval of a Final Plat of Subdivision. The School
District is requesting for a waiver from the requirement to provide the Preliminary Plat of Subdivision.

3. Consideration of other relief, exceptions, and variations from Title 9 and Title 10 of the Village Code.

The School District has informed the Village that the school's demographic projections do not indicate any
growth in student or staff population in Grades K through 4 and Early Childhood Program, and therefore the
proposed project will not increase the current on-site occupancy count from its current level of approximately
530 students, 98 faculty members, and 5 District office staff. The proposed project will be providing additional
educational spaces which currently are either non-existent or inadeguate for the facility. The School District
has indicated there will be no anticipated increase in traffic to and from the property.

The variations proposed by the new scope of work directly relate to non-conforming conditions already present
on the site. The school requires these variations because the existing gymnasium is not large enough for all the
children who should use it and to provide safe and secure traffic measures for all the students at Gower West
Elementary School. The proposed improvements will help better serve the community needs, and the project
will also maintain the aesthetics and existing setbacks of the existing facility and shall not alter the essential
character of the locality.

Background

Description of Site

The subject property is ocated at the southwest corner of Clarendon Hills Road and Sheridan Drive. The subject
property is currently located in the R-1 Single Family Residence District, and is adjacent to the Green Willow
Courthomes Subdivision (zoned R-5 Multiple Family District) to the north, the Palatial Hills Unit 1 and Palatial
Hills Unit 2 Subdivisions (zoned R-3 Single Family Residence District} to the west, the Clarendon Gardens
Subdivision (zoned R-2 Single Family Residence District) to the east, and the Palatial Hills Unit 2 and the Walnut
Manor Subdivisions {zoned R-3 Single Family Residence District) to the south. The 8.58-acre property consists
of two lots: a 1.85-acre lot and a 6.72-acre lot, just east of Lot 134 in the Palatial Hills Unit 2 Subdivision.
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Exhibit 1 Aerlal of the Subject Property and Map of Adjacent Subdivisions
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The site is a total of 8.58 acres and contains an
existing +/- 72,050 sq. ft. building commonly
known as Gower West Elementary School (part of
Gower School District 62). The building is used
solely for school instruction for children in grades
pre-schoal through fourth grade. The property
has a lot depth of +/- 694 feet to +/- 740 feet, with
+/- 740 feet of frontage along Clarendon Hills
Road, with +/- 517 feet of frontage along Sheridan
Drive, and +/- 694 feet of frontage along Cherry
Tree Lane. The main entrance to the building and
a school drop-off area is located on the north and
east sides of the building off of Clarendon Hills
Road and Sheridan Drive.

Exhlb 2 Zoning ap
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Exhibit 3 Map of Adjacent Subdivisions
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Property History
Gower West Elementary School was originaily approved and constructed in DuPage County in 1961 and the
first building addition was completed in 1969. In association with a second building addition, the subject

property was annexed to the Village of Willowbrook in 2002.

Timeline
1966 — Construction of the original East Wing along Clarendon Hills Road
1989 — Construction of the first building addition (West Wing)
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2001 — Construction of the two southern additions

Exhibit 5 Historical Aerial Photographs
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The school is focated on a R-1 zoned lot, and the current zoning regulation requirements require a special use
permit for schools (elementary, junior high and high schools). Schools in the R-1 zoning district are permitted
only on the following roadways: Madison Street, Clarendon Hills Road, Route 83, 63rd Street, 75th Street or
Plainfield Road. It appears that Willowbrook amended its zoning code under the R-1 zoning district in 1977 via
Ordinance No. 77-0-14. A copy of this ordinance is on file in the Office of the Village Planner, Village of
willowbrook, 835 Midway, Willowbrook, lllinois, and is available for public inspection. On page 9 of Ordinance
No. 77-0-14, schools {elementary and high school) were considered a permitted use and likely benefitted from
a legal non-confirming status. This may explain why there is no record of an existing special use permit for the
elementary school even though the facility went through several expansions through the years.

Vehicular Cireulation

Historic Site Circulation

Prior to the 2021 school year, the school bus and student loading both occurred on the north side of the school.
School buses entered the west driveway on Sheridan Drive, loaded on the north side of the school adjacent
to the building, and then exited via Sheridan Drive (East Driveway) or onto Clarendon Hills Road.

Parents were directed to approach the school from the south via Cherry Tree Lane, turn right onto Sheridan
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Drive, turn right again into the West Driveway, use the outer lane to pick up their students, and then exit
onto Sheridan Drive. Attachment 5 illustrates the previous travel paths used by parent vehicles and school
buses.

This plan was not ideal since it mixed bus and parent traffic in the same area and students going to their
parent vehicles had to cross the school bus lane. Also, parent vehicles were stacking northbound on Cherry
Tree Lane and interfered with the access to the single-family homes,

Current Site Circulation

For the 2020 to 2021 school year, the school bus |oading zone has been relocated to the east side of the school
to separate the bus and student loading areas. School buses are still required to enter from Sheridan Drive but
load on the east side of the school and exit onto Clarendon Hills Road.

Parents follow the same basic path except after they enter the school lot, they are directed further south
into the school parking lot to the playground area before entering the loading area adjacent to the school
building. Attachment 6 illustrates the existing circulation patterns.

These changes eliminated the combined loading area of buses and parent vehicles with students crossing
the bus lane and increased the on-site stacking for parent vehicles reducing the queueing on Cherry Tree
Lane.

Proposed Site Circulation
The proposed site pian includes expansion to the building to the south for the existing students and the
school district administration and a playground on the north side of the school.

Under the proposed plan, the seven school buses will be separated completely from parent traffic and will load
on the east side of the school. The north driveway on Clarendon Hills Road will be changed to inbound only
for school buses and staff parking from the existing outbound only drive. The southern drive will move
further south and remain two-way with one lane in and one lane out to allow access to the parking lot south
of the administration area.

Parent traffic will follow the same path by entering and exiting on Sheridan Drive. However, in the afterncon
dismissal period, they will line up in four rows on the playground to minimize, if not eliminate, any queueing
on Sheridan Drive and Cherry Tree Lane. School staff will then direct each lane to enter the loading area

one by one. There is room for 39 vehicles to stack on-site before overflowing onto Sheridan Drive and
Cherry Tree Lane. Attachment 7 illustrates the new plan.

Overall, the volume of school traffic will remain the same but the improvements including a separate bus
loading area and more on-site queueing will improve traffic operations and safety at the school site and on the
public road system.

Traffic Impact Study

The applicant has submitted a Traffic impact Study, prepared by Eriksson Engineering Associates (EEA). The
purpose of the Traffic Impact Study is to examine background traffic conditions and circulation in the proposed
development area, assess the impact that the proposed renovation and addition will have on traffic conditions
in the area, and determine if any roadway or access improvements are necessary to accommodate traffic
generated by the proposed development.

This Traffic Study has been reviewed by the Village’s Transportation Engineer from Bollinger Lach & Associates
(BLA) who has confirmed the following: We concur with the study’s findings that the proposed site
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maodifications will improve site circulation, separate users, increase off-street parking supply, as well as
increase stacking for both buses and parent drop-off/pick-up activities), minimizing conflicts both on-and off-
site.

A Traffic Control Memorandum & Review Response has been included as Attachments 8, 9, and 10.

Staff Analysis

Bulk Regulations

The property is zoned R-1 Single Family Residence District. A detailed discussion of important bulk exceptions
and variations as it relates to the building addition and site improvements is provided below. A full tahle listing
zoning and subdivision compliance is attached as Attachment 11.

1. Minimum Lot Area. The minimum lot area for a public or private Elementary School is five (5) acres
plus one acre per one hundred {(100) students designed enrollment capacity, The total enrollment
capacity is approximately 530 students with no expected growth in student or staff population. The
required minimum lot area is therefore calculated to be 10.3 acres, The subject property does not
meet this requirement as the site is composed of two lots totaling only 8.58 acres. A variation will be
required.

2. Minimym Lot Width. For all other uses: One hundred fifty feet {150'). The subject property meets this
requirement at five hundred seventeen and forty-seven hundredths feet (517.47°},

3. Minimum Lot Depth, For all uses: One hundred fifty feet (150'). The subject property meets this
requirement since the shortest depth along the west property line indicates a length of six hundred
ninety-three and seventy-nine hundredths feet (693.79').

4. Building Setbacks. The required and preposed minimum setbacks are shown in Table 1 below. The
proposed building addition is in conformance with the Village’s required R-1 District front, exterior
side, and rear yard setback requirements.

5. Maximum Lot Coverage. Maximum lot coverage in the R-1 zoning district is 30%. The 100,689 square
foot area of the total building footprint after the addition, new playground area, and trash enclosure
equates to 26.93% coverage, which is less than the maximum 30%.

6. Maximum Height. Maximum height of a building/structure in the R-1 zoning district is 35' or two
stories, whichever is less, The total height of the building addition will not exceed thirty-three feet
(33’} at the gym fascia.

7. Maximum Floor Area Ratio. Maximum FAR is 0.3. The subject property is 8.58 acres, or 373,945
square feet. The maximum floor area would therefore be 112,183.5 square feet (0.3 x 373,945). The
total floor area for the school building complies with this requirement and is proposed to be 90,651

square feet for an FAR of 0.24.
Table 1 Use and Bulk Regulations

WChapien 5

Code Section of

Ordinance Code Requirement Proposed Departure

tem

Churches, convents,
rectories, parsonages and
schools (elementary, junior
high and high schools),
provided that such uses
9-5A-2 may only be permitted
along the following
roadways: Madison Street,
Clarendon Hills Road, Route
83, 63rd Street, 75th Street

Elementary School on

Special Uses
Clarendon Hills Road

Necne

or Plainfield Road.
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Code Section of |
Item Ordinance Code Requirement Proposed Departure
Elementary 5 acres plus 1
acre per 100 students Vs
Minimurm Lot Area - 9-5A-3(A)6 jeeh dienmlnen E.58 acres wat igtion
tapacity g
MEgqueEsT e
530 students = 10.3 acres
Minimum Lot Width 9-5A-3{B)4 150 517.14' None
Minimum Lot Depth 9-5A-3(C) 15¢° 693,79’ to None
Minimum Front Yard , ,
{Sheridan Drive) 9-5A-3{D)1 60 > 60 None
Minimum Interior Side Greater of 15’ or 10% of Lot
Yard 9-5A-3(D)2 Width N/A None
Minimum Exterior Side
Yard 9-5A-3{D)3 50 > 50 None
(Clarendon Hills Road)
Mg mmiReagSide 9-5A-3(D}4 50’ >50° None
Yard
Average sethack does not
Minimum Average apply since residentiai lots
Setback 9-5A-3(D)5 to the south are all rear e Rone
yards.
Maximum Lot Coverage | 9-5A-3(E) 30% 26.93% None
Maximum Height 9-5A-3(F) The'!esser of 35'or2 33’ at Gym Fascia None
stories.
Maximum FAR 9-5A-3(G) 0.30 0.24 None
Minimum Habitable . . . . .
Floor Area 9-5A-3{H} N/A —The school is not a single family detached dwelling unit.
Off-Street Parking

Parking Area Setbacks: Pavement setbacks are regulated in the Parking Section of the Zoning Ordinance. The
proposed site plan is not in compliance with the pavement setback requirements required by the Village Code,
and the applicant is requesting for a variation. Parking area setbacks are outlined in the following Table 2.

Parking Lot Screening & Landscaping: Pursuant to Section 9-10-5 (1)3, all open off-street parking areas having
more than four (4) parking spaces shall be effectively screened along each side which faces a lot in a residential
district, or is directly across any street, from such residential district by decorative masonry walls of not less
than five feet (5°) nor more than six feet {6’} in height or by densely planted tree or shrub hedges, not less than
five feet {5’) in height. In previous discussions with the Police Department (PD), officers expressed concerns on
berms and preferred unobstructed view on three sides facing the residential districts for clear line of sight and
safety reasons. No complaints have been made regarding headlights into residences.

Lighting: The applicant has submitted a photometric plan for the proposed project {Attachment 12). The
photometric plan indicates that the site is meeting the minimum foot-candle output of 1.0 foot-candle at some
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areas of the facility. Areas such as the northern parking lot and some areas of the lot do not meet the minimum
1 foot-candle requirement, and the applicant is requesting a variation. In addition, the applicant is also
requesting a variation from the requirement of off-site street lighting pursuant to Section 10-7-4(D). The
applicant is requesting deviation from the minimum requirement to minimize costs and to also prevent over
lighting the school site located within a residential area.

Table 2 Off-Street Parking
fhaprpr J i
OffStree e kins Sect ion o 105
Code Section
Item of Ordinance Code Requirement Proposed Departure
Off-street parking spaces, access
drives or aisles {including any
and all impervious surfaces),
open to the sky, may be located :\::’ I:: ;;‘ an 40’ {rear/south None
in required interior side yards
and rear yards, to within 40' of
the nearest lot line.
Opeéen to the sky off- street
parking spaces, access drives or The
emsting parking at the
Parking Area Setbacks 9-10-5(G) 'BIS|ES (including any and all Horth front parking ot is
impervious surfaces), may be cisrantly 8.8 frem the
located in reqitired exterior side DEGRRHIE 8t Sheridtin Delv
and:::;t mm to infieu of 15" The Eastaide | Yes, variation
i - = : alang Crarendon il requetted
within 15" of the nearest lot line. it Bt T i
Staff interpretation: Parking is 3
not permitted in exterior and
front yards in residential
districts.
All open off-street parking areas Polica Desartmant and
having more than 4 parking School Oistrict expressed
spaces shall be effectively PRATAIRS APV S
screenedialong each sisiech woild ke unobitructed
faces z lot in 2 residential b A
district, or is directly across any facing hesiduntial 3
Screening And 9-10-5{)3 street, except Hlinois Route 83 (Ciarendon Hill Reod Yes, variztion
tandscaping - {Kingery Highway), from such oy ek L ‘“’ requesied
! LT =2 dmratm, Sherdan Orhoe) for safety
masonry walls of not less than 5 St NI
nor more than & m height or by e Pt
densely planted tree OEShrub regarding headlights inta
hedges, not fess than 5' in e Pty
height at time of installation. "
. Poes not meet the
Design and 9-10-5(1)4 Required minimum foot candle 2 TR Yes, variation
Maintenance, Lighting output of 1.0 foct-candle ‘“H‘ A requested
One {1} parking space for each
faculty member plus one (1) for
. each other full time employees 140, including 5 handicap-
Required Spaces 8-10-5(K) for a total of 103 required accessible spaces Hans
spaces, including 5 handicap-
: accessiblespaces_ ) _ ‘
Access Driveway From | 9-10- " | Maximum wadth of 2 one-way - | Appreximifely thirty Swe | Yes, varistion
Streets To Off-Street {L){2)1s | driveway: ot less than fourteen | faet (327 foithe: - - { requedted
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Parking And Loading feet (5} or more than twenty- ROMAETAMOosE Uriviwi

Spaces, Nonresidential four feet (24°)} n Shendan Drive, 1

Uses,One»way ] approgimsteds thirty |

Driveway | 34| for the a211e thma

On Corner Lots For All

Uses, Spacing Between

Driveway Entrance And

Reght-Of-Way Of An i .

Adjacent Intersecting 'I"I o

Street (Measured From SR

The Nearest Edge Of Qutside the functional area of LTt L ;

The Driveway 9-10-5{L)2( | the intersection, or 500, SRt S ¢

Pavement At Its whichever is less )

intersection With The o

Street Pavemnent To &

The Nearest Right-Of- ;

Way Line, Extended, Of

An Adjacent

Intersecting Street) :

Al driveways providing direct

Access Drveways From access to an artenat street shail

Arterial Streets For Al | o .\ Tnclude 3 concrete median on Mo easerete median an e L

Uses Other Than 54)2)g) the driveways along Clarendon | drivewsy siorage Sy d e

Single-Family & Hills Read and 2 driveway providec =t

Residential storage area of not less than

one hundred feet [100)

Required Parking: The proposed site plan proposes a total of one hundred forty (140) parking spaces (including
five handicap accessible spaces) located on the west, north, east and southeast parking lots. Required parking
was calculated by using the parking formula outlined in Section 9-10-5(K) of the Village Code. Under the
“Nursery, elementary and junior high” use, the zoning code requires one (1) parking space for each faculty
member plus one (1} for each other full time employee. Based on this requirement, the proposed use is
required to provide exactly one hundred and three (103) parking spaces. The proposed development is
required to provide five (5) accessible parking spaces based on Section 9-10-5(N)1. Based on the one hundred
forty (140) total parking spaces proposed, a total of five (5) accessible parking spaces would be required. The
Applicant is proposing to meet the accessible code requirement of five {5) accessible spaces.

Overnight Bus Parking:
Gower School District 62 does not intend to keep any buses overnight at the Gower West Elementary School.

Overnight bus parking is provided at Gower Middle School.

Signs

The applicant is proposing a new monument sign, approximately four feet six inches {4'6”) high and thirteen
feet and eight inches {13'8") wide, to be located near the southeast corner of the new school addition. The
monument sign wili have the letters “Gower School District 62 Administration,” and a cast metal logo of ten
(10) inch radius focated along the right edge. The proposed signage meets the development standards per
Section 9-11 (Signs), and will require a permit issued by the Director of Municipal Services.

Accessory Uses and Home Occupations

Appurtenant Structures: On June 2, 2021, Zoning Hearing Case 21-06 was presented to the Plan Commission
for consideration of a petition for a text amendment to amend Title 9, Chapter 12 of the Zoning Title of the
Village of Willowbrook regarding the regulation of children’s recreational equipment. The text amendment
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added that the “the property owner may apply for a variation to locate children’s recreational equipment in
its front or exterior side yard in conformance with procedures, terms and conditions set forth in Section 4
entitled “Variations” of Chapter 14, Viilage Board approved Ordinance No. 21-0-33 on June 28, 2021.

Fencing: Pursuant to Section 9-12-4 (D){2)(j), a fence not greater than six feet (6') in height and at least eighty
percent (80%) open may be located anywhere on a lot whereupon the principal use is institutional, provided
that such fence shall utilize a decorative design, such as wrought iron. The applicant is proposing both a four
{#’) feet tall, and six (6) feet tall chain-linked fence, fifteen (15) feet setback from the west property line, and
is requesting variation from the wrought iron fencing. The applicant is requesting the installation of a more
cost-effective chain-link fence.

Landscaping: Existing landscaping on the site Is limited and scattered within the subject property. The applicant
proposes to remove approximately eleven (11) trees as the majority of these trees are located within the
footprint of the American flag, play area, or proposed building. The applicant is proposing abundant
landscaping for the subject property that includes a variety of deciduous, evergreen, and ornamental trees and
shrubs. The construction of the Gower West Elementary School Addition will result in the removal of eleven
(11) trees, to be replaced by fifty-four (54) ornamental trees and shade trees, and 235 shrubs.

The proposed landscaping effectively frames the property with deciduous and evergreen trees, establishes
nine (9} new street trees along the property’s frontage, {Sheridan Drive) and adds greenery and trees to the
school’s east and south property line. Refer to Attachment 13 for the Landscape Plan.

The proposed plan is compliant with regard to foundation landscaping. Section 9-14-2(D)2(c}(4) of the Village
Code, which requires a mix of deciduous and evergreen shrubs within a continuous 7-foot wide strip around
the perimeter of the building except where building entrances are located. The proposed site plan includes the
required 7-foot wide landscaped area and required border and foundation plantings around the perimeter of
the school. The proposed landscaping conforms with the Village Zoning Ordinance.

Item Cog:dsi::l:: it Code Requirement Proposed Departure
Children's recreational
equipment/playhouses are
permitted within the Children’s recreglianal
A interior side, rear and court | eguipment cusrenthy
:::'r:::;dmus §-12-2 yards, per bulk standards propoated within the Front :::{nun*_
4 listed under 9-12-4 yard | -
and Uses FEquEsted
Refuse bins (max. size the
greater of 125 sq. ft. or 1%
lot area).
Children’s recreational e
Appurtenant Structures | S-12-4{D)1{e} ::mp:::t gl beinl:uted Located in front yard variation
A requested
Fences not greater than five
feet {5') it height may be Fiwe foot high fence proposed | Yes,
Fences and Walls 9-12-4({b)Z(b} located anywhere on a Iot, around childhood playground | requesting
except In a required front or | in Frant and side yards variation
exterior side yard, 1 _
Notwithstanding the Beausting chistn bk lnce Yes,
Fences and Walls - 9-12-4{D)2{}} provisions contained in o L i e | reguesting
subsections (D)2(a) through y variation
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(D)2{d) of this saction, &
fence not greater than 6' v
height and at least 80%
open may be located
anywhere on a lot
whereupon the principal
use 15 mstitutional, provided
that such fence shall utilize
a decorative design, such as

wrought fron

Trash Enclosure: The Applicant is proposing a 7’ trash enclosure on northwest portion of the site, to the west
side of the existing schoot building. A trash enclosure plan and details were provided by the Applicant. Per
Section 8-12-11 of the Village Code, the trash enclosure must be constructed to look like masonry and shall
appear ta the color and style of the building.

Utilities

Per civil engineer’s review from Novotny, all existing and proposed utllities can be located on Sheet C-121W of
the civil engineering plan set prepared by Eriksson Engineering Associates dated 3/7/22 (Attachment 3). No
proposed water service is being proposed. The existing water service along Sheridan Drive will be reused. The
plan set provides the proposed storm water detention in an underground precast concrete detention system
located near the southwest corner of the site. Proposed storm sewer has been designed throughout the site
to collect the stormwater and to discharge to the underground detention system. A restrictor has been
provided in a structure to provide the required release per County requirements. Two existing sanitary services
will be reused to provide the sanitary discharge offsite,

Stormwater Management: On March 3, 2022, Christopher B. Burke Engineering provided the following
comments pertaining to stormwater and its related items after having reviewed the proposed engineering
plans prepared by Eriksson Engineering Associates, LTD., bearing a revision date of January 3, 2022, and DuPage
County Stormwater Management Report prepared by Eriksson Engineering Associates, LTD., dated January 12,
2022;

1. Stormwater detention is being provided in an underground vault (StormTrap}. Stormwater detention
is provided for the new improvements plus compensation for an existing detention which is being
eliminated with the new development.

2. Post Construction Best Management Practices are being provided for the new impervious area within
the voids of the stone below the underground storage. The purpose of the PCBMPs is to reduce
pollutants and reduce runoff volume.

3. There is a small wetland on site (less than 0.1 acre). The US Army Corps of Engineers has provided a
letter of no jurisdiction, and no mitigation is required under the Du Page County Countywide
Stormwater and Floodplain Ordinance. The wetlands aspect of the project were received by our
Environmental Resources staff.

4. AStormwater Development Security is not required for units of government.

The engineer’s full responses are provided in Attachment 14.

Other Improvements

Novotny Engineering has reviewed additional requirements pertaining to the public right-of-way, and the
applicant is requesting additional variations as listed below. In addition, the Village staff applied for a grant
through the Safe Routes to School program with Gower West for sidewalks at the west side of campus. Staff
anticipates a decision from the Illinois Department of Transportation in early 2022,
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Item

Code Section of
Ordinance

Code Requirement

Proposed

Departure

Preflimimary Plat

10-34

As @ prerequnsite to the
filing of a final plat of
subdiviston, an applicant
shall file a prefiminary plat
of subdnasion

The Schaol Dxtrict s
fegueiting & waives trom the
regueements 1o prosnde the
Frebmunary Plet ol

Lubtnrmiman

Yes,
vanmtion
requested

Curb and gitter
dramage improvements

{ 10-7-2(C)

All streets are to be
designed and constructed
with curbs and gutters in
accordance with standard
specification adopted, from
time to time, by resolution
of the Board of Trustees

Reguesling watver along
Clarendon Hifls Hoad

Y,
varlation
requesied

Sidewalks

10-7-4{A)

In all subdivisions created
after the effective date of
this section, sidewalks shall
he provided on the sides of
all street rights-of-way
adjacent to and contained
within the subdivision being
developed.

See Code for further
information.

No sidewalks exist adjacent to
the subject property on Cherry
Tree Lane.

A 5 sidewalk is proposed on
Cherry Tree Lane.

None

Public Walkways

10-7-4(B)

See Code.

N/A

None

Plantings

10-7-4{C}

Street trees shall be planted
on both sides of each
proposed street except
where there are existing
treas present and
preserved. Street trees
newly planted shal! be no
further apart than fifty feet
(50"} or ohe tree per inside
lot and twe (2} trees on
corner lots, whichever is

greater.

Mo strepl trees a0e planted

Yea,
variation
reguested

Street Lighting

10-7-4{D}

The subdivider shalf provide
street lighting in all
subdivisions which shall be
designed and constructed In
accordance with standard
specifications adopted,
from time to time, by
resolution by the Board of
Trustees

Clarendon Hills Road I
designaied &5 0 rural cross
sechion imanded to be
improved to wrban standard,
but street lghts may not
make sense here since CHED
does not hawe comistant
sireed fights

Yoo
variation
gt

Street Signs

10-7-4{E)

See Code.

N/A

None

Commercial, Industrial,
Office Research And
Multi-Family And

Parking And Lighting

10-7-4(F)

See Code.

N/A

None

Tri-State Fire District Review

15
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The Tri-State Fire District provided plan review letter in March 2022. Tri-State had the following comments
related to the zoning review of the proposed project.

1. Tri-State Comment: We have received a copy of the architectural plans for the above listed project.
We have completed a courtesy review and have no comments regarding applicable standards relative
to fire prevention and life safety. When the project is complete, we would fike to complete a walk
through life safety courtesy inspection.

The full Tri-State Fire District Review letter can be seen in Attachment 15.

Summary of Zoning & Subdivision Regulation Variations

Zoning Relief/Waivers Requested: In order to maintain compliance with the Village Zoning Code, the special
use request and proposed subdivision require certain relief, exceptions, and waivers. Pursuant to Section 9-
14-4 of the Village Code, the following variations from the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are requested:

Minimum Lot Area

1. That Section 9-5A-3(A)(6), Minimum Lot Area, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum required
lot area from 10.3 acres to 8.58 acres.

Off-Street Parking

2. That Section 9-10-5{G), Parking Area Setbacks, be varied to permit open to the sky off-street parking
spaces, access drives or aisles in the front yard (Sheridan Drive) and exterior side yards {Cherry Tree Lane
and Clarendon Hills Road}, and to permit a reduction of the parking area setback from fifteen feet (15') to
six feet and four inches (6’4”) at the northwest portion of the subject realty and to approximately nine
feet (9°) along the center of the north lot line.

3. That Section 8-10-5(1)3, Design and Maintenance, Screening and Landscaping, be varied to eliminate the
minimum screening and landscaping requirements for open off-street parking areas having more than
four parking spaces facing a residential district. Police Department expressed concerns on berms and
would like unobstructed views on all four sides for safety reasons. No complaints have been made
regarding headlights into residences. Planning staff supports variation. Plans show landscape screening
along south property line which abuts adjacent against residential uses.

4. That Section 9-10-5{1)4, Design and Maintenance, Lighting, be varied to eliminate required minimum foot
candle output of 1.0 foot-candle at the northern parking lot of the school site.

5. That Section 9-10-5(L}{2}(a}{2)(a), Access Driveway From Streets To Off-Street Parking And Loading
Spaces, Nonresidential Uses, One-way Driveway, be varied to permit an increase in the maximum width
of a one-way driveway from twenty-four feet (24’) to approximately thirty-two feet (32’) for the
northernmost driveways on Sheridan Drive, to approximately thirty feet {30’) for the easternmost
driveway on Clarendon Hills Road.

6. That Section 9-10-5{L}{2){f), Spacing Between Driveway Entrance And Right-Of-Way Of An Adjacent
Intersecting Street, be varied to permit a reduction in the minimum spacing between driveway entrance
and right-of-way of an adjacent intersecting street to less than five hundred feet (500°). Distance from
Cherry Tree Lane and Sheridan Drive intersection and first driveway entrance from Sheridan Drive is
approximately 70 feet. Distance from the Sheridan Drive and Clarendon Hills Road intersection to the
northeast entrance is approximately forty five feet (45').

7. That Section 9-10-5{L}(2)(g}, Access Driveways From Arterial Streets For All Uses Other Than Single-Family
Residential, be varied to eliminate the requirement of a concrete median on the driveways along
Clarendon Hills Road and to eliminate the requirement of a driveway storage area of not less than one
hundred feet {100").
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Accessory Uses and Home Occupations

8. That Section 9-12-2 and Section 9-12-4{D}{1){e}, Appurtenant Structures, be varied to permit
playground equipment in the front yard.

9. That Section 9-12-4 (D) 2 {b}, Fences and Walls, be varied to request the allowance of 5’ H decorative
metal and brick fencing for the early childhood playground be located in the front and side setback area.

10. That Section 9-12-4 (D) 2 {j}, Fences and Walls, be varied to allow the fencing surrounding the soccer
field, older student playground and drop-off lane to be a 4’ or 6’high chain link fence in lieu of a
decorative fence.

Subdivision Improvements: Pursuant to Section 10-8-6 of the Village Code, the following variations from the
provisions of the Subdivision Regulations are requested:

11. The School District is requesting for a waiver from the requirement of Section 10-3-4 to provide the
Preliminary Plat of Subdivision.

12. That Section 10-7-2(C) of the subdivision regulations related to curb and gutter drainage improvements
be waived along Clarendon Hills Road.

13. That Section 10-7-4{C), Plantings, be varied to eliminate the requirement of street trees along the
Clarendon Hills Road and Cherry Tree Lane rights-of-way.

14, That Section 10-7-4(D} be varied to omit street lighting in the adjacent right-of-way, since Clarendon Hitls
Road does not have street lighting continuous in the area and Staff and the Police Department believe
that there will be sufficient lighting on the site.

Findings of Fact

Standards for Variations

Section 9-14-4{E) of the Willowbrook Zoning Qrdinance establishes seven (7) standards for variations that must
be evaluated by the Plan Commission and Village Board. Recommendations may include conditions of approval
if appropriate to mitigate any negative impacts created by the variation. A list of the Standards for Variations
is provided below, along with the proposed findings to be incorporated in the Plan Commission’s
recommendation and the Village Board’s ordinance if approved.

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the
conditions allowed by the regulations of the district in which it is located.

Finding: The property in question Is zoned as R-1, which allaws for the uses of schools, provided that
such uses may only be permitted along the following roadways such as Clarendon Hills Road with a
special use permit. Furthermore, the proposed project is a renovation and expansion of an existing
school on site.

2. The proposed variation will not merely serve as a convenience to the applicant, but will alleviate some
demanstrable and unusual hardship which will result if the strict letter of the regulations were carried
out and which Is not generally applicable to property within the same district.

Finding: The proposed variation will alleviate some demonstrable and unusual hardship which will
result as a legal non-conforming use of the school’s site. The school’s parking renovation and building
expansion, along with its related site improvements, will trigger many zoning ordinance provisions that
will prove to be burdensome to the school and its effort to improve circulation, flow of traffic, and
services for the existing body of students.

17



Staff Report to the Plan Commission Aprit§, 2022 _;‘_j';:'-:}
Gower West Elementary School Addition Eunize Im, Planning Consultant ‘,é‘ e

3. Thealleged hardship has not been created by any person presently having a proprietary interest in the
premises.

Finding: The alleged hardships are not created by any person presently having a proprietary interest
since the Gower Schooi District 62 is listed as the owner of the property.

4. The proposed variation will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other
property or improvements in the neighborhood.

Finding: The proposed variations will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or injurious
to other property or impravements in the neighborhood. Instead, the proposed parking renovation
and expansion of the existing school building will enhance the community by providing better traffic
flow and educational service for the community’s children.

5. The proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property,
substantially increase congestion in the public streets, increase the danger of fire, or endanger the
public safety.

Finding: The proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air, as the renovation
will add lighting to the site. The renovated parking lot will decrease congestion in the public street,
and attow better traffic circulation on site. Review of technical studies by Traffic Engineer and the Tri-
State Fire District confirms that the proposed project does not increase danger of fire or endanger
public safety.

6. The proposed variation will not alter the essential character of the locality. {Ord. 77-0-4, 2-14-1977)

Finding: The proposed variation will not alter the essential character of the locality since the
elementary school has been in existence since 1961, and the proposed development is a renovation
and expansion of an existing school site.

7. The proposed variation is in harmony with the spirit and intent of this title. (Ord. 97-0-05, 1-27-1997)

Finding: The proposed variation is in harmony with the spirit and intent of this title in that school uses
are allowed in residential districts with a special use permit.

Standards for Variations from Subdivision Regulations

Under Section 10-8-6 of the Willowbrook Subdivision Regulations, the Board of Trustees may authorize a
variation from the subdivision regulations after review and recommendation by the Plan Commission when,
in its opinion, undue hardship may result from strict compliance and provided the variation applies only to
the requirements of this title. The Board may take such action only upon receipt from the Plan Commission of
a written recommendation specifying the manner in which the findings required in this section have or have
not been met by the facts pertinent to the requested variation.

No variation shall be granted unless the board of trustees finds:
(A) That there are special circumstances or conditions affecting said property, such that the strict

application of the provisions of this title would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of his
land.
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Finding: Strict application of the code would create hardship for the project. The project complies
with the majority of its zoning and subdivision regulations and meets the intent of the zoning law.
The proposed project variations would not be detrimental to the public health and safety.

(B} That the variation is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right of
the petitioner,

Finding: The variation is necessary for the continual operation and expansion of the school site. The
school’s expansion and site renovation will enhance the traffic flow and service to the community.

(C) That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other
property in the area in which said property is located.

Finding: The proposed variation to relieve the applicant of the requirement to waive a preliminary
plat, install trees and street lightings, and to install curb and gutter along Clarendon Hills Road will
not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to cther property or improvements in the
neighborhood. The absence of curb and gutter along the property’s frontage along Clarendon Hills
Road will maintain the status quo of a rural cross section for Clarendon Hilis Road. In addition,
absence of street trees and lights will not be detrimental to the public welfare since there are
substantial tree plantings and lighting planned for the site.

(D) The alleged hardship has not been created by any person having a present proprietary interest in the
property. (Ord. 79-0-43, 11-26-1979).

Finding: The alleged hardship has not been created by any person presently having a proprietary
interest in the premises, as many of the regulations are unmet due to legal non-conforming nature of

the existing property use.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

Recommended Conditions for Approval

Based on plans submitted by the applicant, Staff recommends the following conditions for approval of the Lot
Consolidation, Special Use Permit and Request for Variations.

1. Final engineering plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Village Engineer prior to issuance of a Site
Development Permit by the Village of Willowbrook.

2. Asign permit shall be obtained from the Village for the proposed new monument sign.

A fence permit shall be obtained from the Village for the proposed fencing and walls.

4. The trash enclosure must be constructed by masonry wall, or equivalent material, and shall be
consistent with the color and style of the building.

b

Public Hearing Notice and Comments

Public hearing notice was published in the Chicago Sun-Times on March 21, 2022 as shown on Attachment
16. Signage of the public hearing notice was also posted on the subject property beginning on March 21,
2022. No public comments in support or opposition have been received as of the writing of this report.

Sample Motion

Based on the submitted petition and testimony provided, | move that the Plan Commission approve and
adopt the Standards for Variations outlined in the Staff Report prepared for PC 21-02 for the April 6, 2022
Plan Commission meeting; and that the Plan Commission recommend to the Village Board approval of
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special use permit to allow the existing Gower West Elementary School, a 18,601 square foot, one-story
addition to building, expansion and improvements to the existing parking lots, addition of a new parking iot,
addition of a new children’s playground, and general site and landscaping improvements in the R-1 Zoning
District; approval of a Final Plat of Subdivision to consolidate the two-lot property; and associated variations
as described in, and subject to the “Conditions of Approval” listed in the Staff Report prepared for PC 22-02
for the April 6, 2022 Plan Commission meeting.
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Attachment 1
Application for Planning Review, dated 01.03.22
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oS OGIATES

3 January 2022 ARCHITESTURE
CONSTRLCTION SERVICES

Ms. Karen Stonehouse
Village Planning Consuitant
Village Hall

835 Midway Drive
Willowbrook, IL. 60527

Good afternoon Ms. Stonehouse,

Please find enciosed the REVISED information for the Planning Review Application for
the Gower West Elementary School Additions and Renovations project. The stormwater
design has changed since the previous submission.

The project consists of an addition of classrooms, gym, and district administrative offices
on the South end of the existing elementary school. Site circulation improvements include
more onsite queuing for cars, additional parking, and lengthening the dedicated bus lane
on the East side of the property. Student recreation improvements include a new soccer
field and a playground designed for the early childhood students.

Please do not hesitate to call me if you need additional information. Thank you for your
assistance on this Application.

Respectfully,

g7 s

Carole Donovan Pugh, AlA, LEED AP
Principal, GreenAssociates Inc.

Enfightened Deslgn
Praciina! Soluions

1437 Hasmony Cuwt
Yiascs, inois 60143
{eiephons 847-317.0852
WA fiesniesociates com

Georpe W Reigie, AlA
Carols Donovan Pugh, AIA
Yiitkam HR. Teyior, A&
Staphan M. Chassee
Andzow G. McCall, AIA



l. Property legal description

Gower West Elementary School
7650 Clarendon Hills Road
Willowbrook, IL. 60527

{2) parcels
PINs 0927409001 and 0927408016

Parcel 1. Lot 34 in Palatial Hills Unit #2, Southeast quarier of Section 27, Township 38 North,
Range 11, East of the Third Principal Meridian. Village of Willowbrook, DuPage County, IL.

Parcel 2. That part of the Southeast quarter of Section 27, Township 38 North, Range 11, East of
the Third Principal Meridian. Described as follows: Beginning at the Northeast corner of
Anderman’s Subdivision of part of the Southeast quarter of said Section 27: Thence westerly along
the North line of the lot 1 of said Anderman’s Subdivision a distance of 433.39 feet to the
Northwest comer of lot 1 of Anderman’s Subdivision. Thence Northerly parafie! to the East line of
the Southeast quarter of said Section 27 to the South right-of-way line of Sheridan Road as platted
and recorded in Palatial Hills Unit #1. Thence Easterly along the South right-of-way line of
Sheridan Road as platted and recorded in Palatial Hills Unit #1 to the east line of the Southeast
quarter of said Section 27. Thence southerly along the East line of said Southeast quarter to the
Northeast corner of Anderman’s Subdivision, the place of beginning except the East 33 feet
thereof dedicated for highway. In DuPage County, IL.

A Consolidation Plat is provided in the drawing packet.
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Variations requested:

R-1 Residential. 9-5A-3(A)6. Minimum lot size. The existing school property is
8.585 acres however the zoning requirement is 10.3 based upon 530 students.
A variation is requested as there is no opportunity to expand the lot size.

Off street parking. 9-10-5(G). Parking area setbacks. The existing parking at the
North front parking lot is currently 8.8’ from the property at Sheridan Drive in lieu
of 15°. The East side along Clarendon Hills varies between 15’ and 16.3".
Variations are requested.

Off street parking. 9-10-5 (G) 1 and 2, 9-10-5(1) 3. Screening of parking areas.
Due to the nature of a school facility's need for safety and security visual control,
variations from screening of the new and existing parking lots are requested.
Off street parking. 9-10-5(L) 2e and f. Off street parking. The existing and new
access driveways do not meet the distance requirements between driveway
entrances nor spacing to adjacent intersections or right-of-way. Variations are
requested.

Accessory Uses and Home Occupations. 8-12-4(D)1(e). Bulk Regulations.
Request variation for locating the early childhood playground in the front of the
building and setback adjacent to the early childhood classrooms and entrance.
Accessory Uses and Home Occupations. 9-12-4 (D) 2 (b). Bulk Regulations.
Request the 5’ H decorative metal and brick fencing for the early childhood
playground be iocated in the front of the building and setback adjacent to the
early childhood classrooms and entrance. Variation requested.

Accessory Uses and Home Occupations. 9-12-4 (D) 2 (j). Bulk Regulations.
Propose the fencing surrounding the soccer field, older student playground and
drop-off lane be a 6'H chain link fence in lieu of a decorative fence. Variation
requested.

Other Improvements. 10-7-4(D). Other improvements, Street lighting. Clarendon
Hills Road does not have street lighting continuous in the area. Since the parking
lots will provide lighting, a variation is requested to omit the street lighting in the
adjacent right-of-way.

Standards for Variations:

The variations requested provide improved function for site circulation, parking,
supervision, and community use.

Proposed variations are applicable to school facilities. Less planted screening
results in more visibility for police supervision. Parking variations result in
improved circuiation, parking lots and entrances.

The School District project seeks to improve the site with these playground and
traffic improvements.

The variations will not be detrimental to the public welfare or neighborhood, as
they improve site function and the project will be an overall improvement to the
school and for the community as a whole.

Light and air to adjacent properties will not be affected and safety will be
enhanced. More parent queuing will be accommodated onsite which will lessen
the car lines on neighboring streets.

The variations will not affect the overall aesthetic of the school property.
Variations proposed are in the spirit of the Village zoning and provide
improvements that will be used by not only the school users but by community
members.
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Standards for Special Use:

The permit brings the property into compliance with the Village code. The
property has been used for a schoo! facility since the 1960s. The Special Uss
improvements provide safer site circulation for students and parents.

The designation of the Special Use zoning will not affect the value of the
surrounding residences, most of which were built after the original school.
Playground and field improvements will be & benefit to the community.

The establishment of the Special Use does not affect the surrounding properties,
The site improvements and the addition to the school on the south side will have
the necessary utilittes and more access points and parking. Drainage onsite will
also be improved with the inclusion of underground stormwater storage.

- Traffic congestion near the school will be improved with the additional parking

and new onsite queuing will lessen the number of cars waiting In the street.
The site improvements will conform to the requirements of the zoning and
ordinances excepting the variations requested.

This project has not been submitted to the Village previously.

Construction Schedule

Final construction drawings and specifications Oct 30, 2021
Underground stormwater, utilities and

sitework construction start March 1, 2022
Construction of new addition start March 15, 2022
Renovation within school facility start June 1, 2022
Project completion Dec 1, 2022

Summary of Site Construction Costs

Electrical, site lighting $96,000
Landscaping $35,000
Civil scope $2,093,067(Breakdown is attached)
Total $2,224 067
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Architectural Plans 01.03,22
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OWNER CERTIFICATE

STATE CF {LLNOS)
COUNTY OF DUPKGE)
THSISTOCERTFY TWATTHE __________
DESCRISED ON THE ATTACHED FLAT, AND HAS CAUSET THE SAME O BE SURVEYED
WOICATED THEREOW FOR THE USES AND PURPOSES THEREIN SET FORTH.

DAEDTHIS . DAY OF .20,

B PANTED NAE

B PRINTED NAME:

NOTARY CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINGIS)
COUNTY OF
A ROTARY PUBLIC, 1N AND FOR snnewrm,mmzsw:msnu.

L ——

—_ . OF SND VILLAGE, PERSCNALLY KNOWN TO ME TO EM“WWWEW‘B
ARE SUSSCRASED TO THE FOREGOMNG INSTRUMENT AS SUGH
APPEARET BEFORE ME THIE DAY IN PERSON AND ACKNOWLEDGED THAT mmmnmmwn
INSTRUMENT AS THEIR OWN FREE AND VOLLINTARY ACT, AND AS THE FREE AMD VOLUNTARY ACT OF SAD WLLAGE,
NOT INCMIDUALLY, BUT SCLELY AS TRUSTEE, AS AFORESAD, FOR THE USES AND PURFOSES THEREIM SET FORTH,
AND THE _______ 0M ALSQ THEM AND THERE AGKNOWLEDGE THAT __HE, AS CUSTDDUN OF THE
CORFORATE SEAL OF SAID VILLAGE, DD AFDN THE DORPORATE SEAL T THE SAD INSTRUMENT AS H_ OWN FREE
AND VOLUNTARY ACT, AND AS THE FREE AND YOLUNTARY ACT OF SAID VILLAGE, AS TRUSTEE, AS AFORESAID, FOR
THE USES AMO PURPOSES THERFIN SET FORTH.

MOTARY PLRLIC (SEAL)

COUNTY CLERK CERTIFICATE

S oF LS}

COUNTY OF buPAGE)

I . COUNTY CLERK OF LANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE NO GELINOUENT GEMERAL TAXES, UNPAIL CURRENT GENERAL TAYES,
DELMQUENT SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS OR UNPAD CURRENT SPECIL ASSERSMENTS. ACARST ANY OF
THE LAND IHCLUTED N THE DESCABED PROPERTY. j FURTHER CERTIFY THAT | HAVE REGENVED
AL STATUTORY FEES M COMNECTION WiTH THE PLAT.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF THE GOUNTY CLERK AT WHEATON, LLMNOIS.
THE: D&Y OF o

T Tty mex

VILLAGE COLLECTOR

Sﬂﬁwwﬁ)s
COUNTY OF DUPAGE)
| FIND %0 DEFERRED INSTALLWENTS GF
ANY OF THE LAND INCLUDED M THE ABOVE PLAT.

UNPMD SPESIAL DUE AGMNST

DATED THIS _ BarafF L AD 20

L T —

YILLAGE ENGINEER

SIATE OF ILLINDIS)

COUNTY OF Dtaoey™

APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE ENGINEER OF THE WILLAGE OF MOUNT PROSFECT, DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINGIE.

DATED THS ___ DAY OF AD. 20
T

SURVEYOR'S NOTES

JRON PIPES OR SURVEYDR'S NALS ARE SET AT AL LOT CORNERS UNLESS

OTHERMSE NOTED.

ALL MEASUREMENTS AND DISTANCES ARE SHOWN W FEET AND DECHMAL PARTS
ALL EASEMENTS DEMCTED ON THE PLAT MAP ARE PUBLIC UTIUTIES UNLESS

OTHERMSE NOTED.
BEARBCS SHOWH Hi EMONMBUNEMW
THE ANGULAR RELATIONSHIP BETWEEW

EREQH
MD ARE WTEHDED CALY TO SHOW

PLAT SUBMITIAL AWD RETURN TO MOORESS:
THIE PLAT SUBMITIED FOR RECORDING HY, AND RETURN TO:

GOWER WEST SCHOOL SUBDIVISION

HND A RESUBKRVISION N THE
OF THE

. EAST OF

A
AMDDRESS:
e o
f— 2 NO TITLE COMMITMENT NOR LEGN, PESCRIFTION WAS PROVIDED AY CLENT

[ —
AT MAY 24, 2031 suKVEYING u
s FATPNG £ e
To BONE SCHOGL bisTRtCT b LT o AL ;:"r'ﬁqu-mv-wn. D1 G000

RS .~ PAGE 1 OF 2

B47-548-5600
nl

VY, OO

NEADNGE
FAX 548-55P9
fvwsul W COITY

a7, TOWNSH 38 NURH. RANGE

SOUTHEAST QUARTER
THIRD PRINCIPAL WERIUN, IIITIEVILIJA‘E OF WILLOWBROOK, DUPAGE COUWTY,

RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE
STATE OF (LINGIS)
COUNTY OF DU

THIS INSTRUMEWT NC, ________ WAS FILED FOR REGORD M THE RECORDER'S GFFICE OF
UUPAGE COLINTY, ILLINDIS AFOREBAID OM THIS ____ DAY OF AD. 20,

RECCACER OF LEEDY

ATY COUNCIL OR VILLAGE BOARD

STATE OF ILLINGIS)
COUNTY OF DUPAGE)
ARPRCVED BY THE CTY COUHCKL (VILLAGE BOARD) GF THE CITY {ALLAGE} oF
DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLIMGIS,

OATED AT ___ WM, THS . DAY OF

o

ay:
CITY (VALAGE) CLERK

CITY OR VILLAGE PLAN COMMISSION

STATE OF I.LIOG\S)gg
COUNTY OF )

APPROVED Br THE PLAN THE oY
oF I —

PROFILE $TUDY

HTATE OF LLINO)

couny o oueia) =

TO THE BEST GF OUR KNOWLEDGE AN BELIEF THE DRANAGE OF SURFACT WATERS WILL NOT
THE

CONSTRUCTION OF THE SUBDIVISION,

DATED THS DYOF .

ENGINEER

SURVEYOR'S DESIGNATION OF RECORDING

STATE OF iLLINDIS)
COUNTY OF LAKE)

| JAMES P, MEER, A PROFESSIGHAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF ILUNDIS, HEREBY 0ESIGHATE
THS SUET VS|

O DN PLAT WITH THE DUPAE
COUNTY REGORDER OF DEETS. Mm RIGHT T8
SUCH RECORMII DER CHAPTER 1! mzwmmnmm S A
CONDITION GTHI! MI'. BAD DI B HEREEY
ENTIFIED COPY LAT, BUMETNATELY LIPOM mmcursmz. RECET OF SAD CERTMED
wwmumsmmmmmmeummmam

DATED THIS 24th DAY OF WAY, AD. 2021,

ILUNGIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR WO. 33-3295

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATE

STATE OF (LLINUES)
DCOUNTY OF LAKE)

1 JAMES P. MEIER, ILLNOIS PROFESSIONAL LAMD SURVEYOR, HEREBY CERIIFY THAT | HAVE SURVEVED
AND SLIEBMED THE FOLLOWRNG DESCRIEED PROPERTY TO-WIT:

Ll’l'!‘llm munwumwwmummnmwsmﬂ.
TOWKSHF 33 RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRI M N THE
If.m ro iy ICPAL N, WLLAGE OF

PARCEL, 2;
THAT PART OF TME SOUTHEAST OUARTER OF SITTION 27, TOMNSHIP 38 mm:u,ng'r;

NORTHEAST OF SUEDMEION, THE PLACE OF BFGINMING ENCEPT THE FAST 33
mmmmmmmmum

THAT THE PLAT HEREOM ORAWN K5 A REPRESENTATION OF SAID SURVEY AKD SUBOMSION.
uumusmsum N FEET AKD DECRML PARTS EDF..
wmmwumnﬁmnmmmnﬁ

RooK. LNOIS.
HEREDN FALLS Hﬂ’l‘ils ZONE “X" AREAS

THE PROPERTY SHOWM
mmwunmmzuumnmmmm IERGNATED BY THE
FEDERAL EMERGENCY AGENCY, AS PER ARM, WP WU ERWIHE!}ZTN. DATED

CERTIFED AT GRAYSLAKE, ILLINGIS THIS 24th DAY OF WAY, AQ. 2021

PRELIMINARY

LIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYDR MO, 33~-J285
LICENSE EXPIRES NCVEMEER 30, 2023
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Memorandum

TO: Carale Pugh
Green Associsies

FROM: Btephen B. Corcoran, P.E., FTOE
Director of Traffic Engineering

DATE: July 30, 2021

RE: Gower Wasl Elementary Scho)
7650 Clarendon Hills Road

Willowbrook, fllinais

Eriksson Engineering Associsles (EEA) reviewed the existing site circulation and peridng and proposed
£hanges st Gower West Elementary Bchoot in Willowbrook, lHinois.

She Locatlon

Gower West Elemerntary School is locatad a1 7660 Clarendon Hills Rd in Willowhrook. limois. The site is
Iocated betwsen Clarendon Hilks Read and Cherry Tree Lape south of Sheridan Drive. Single-family homas
form the southem border of the site. I is located In a single-family residential neighbothood with multi-farmily
homes north of Sherdan Drive. Flgure 1 Mosirales the site’s Incalion and ares foadways (Al figures can
be found at the end of the report).

Area Roadways

Clarendon Hilis Road Is a north-souh minor arterial readway adiacen to the site. |t has twodanes without
any medians and & 3D-speed lmil.

Bharidad Drive js an easi-west twodane residential straet between 75t Strest and Clarendon Hilis Road.
I Is under stop control a1 Clarendon Hils Road. %t has o 25-mph speed fimit and 2 20-mph school speed
limtt. Parking i permitied on both Sides west of the school site and restricted on the both side along the
schooi frontage on schaol days from §:00 AM to 8:00 AM,

Cherry Tree Lane is 3 north-south two-tane residential sivect between Sheridan Drive snd 79 Strewt, tis
under yield cantrol &t Sheridan Drive. Ithas a 25-mph speed limit and a 20-mph school speed limit, Parking
is permitiad on both sides south of the schoot site and resiricted on the west slde aeng the school frontage
on sohool days from $:00 AM to 3:00 PM.

Midway Drive is an east-west residential twotane roadway with a 20-mph speed fimit and parking
permitied on both sides. Il 1s under siop sign gontrol with fashing lights at Clarendon Hills Road with
crosswalks proviged on the north and east feg of the inlersection.

Figure 2 Wusirales the rosdway and geomelrics sround the site. All roads arolind the schoal are under the
jurisdicsion of the Village of Willowbrook. Sidewalks are provided along sl sireel in the stutdy area except
along the east side of Cherry Tree Lane aiong the school's frontags.

Himaric Gounts

Traffic counts ¢ the achool driveways and adjacent roadways were. not conducted due 1o the impact of the
purrent pandemic. Also, consideration was given that the changes to the school would not increase traffic
generated by the alementsry school and administration office.

Traffic data from the DuPage Department of Transpeniation was obiained for the intersection of 75t Streat
and Clarendon Hills Road 800 fest to the nordh, They are dated May 4, 2010 ang are included in the
Appendix. South of the shopping center, these volumes would be tower However, general tratfic growih
Eince 2010 may have increased these valumas by 10%.

Vo - IR
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Tabie 4
2010 Howly Traffic Counts
Clarendon Hills Road
South of 75™ Street
"'mw.'.\?.ﬂ?"*;z:‘-'.ﬁ‘m Ty S e S P, T F:mu-_a.—w-.- -
Poriod! Bouthboond | dorhivosem Totat
T-8:00 AMt £l 445 G54
£8:9:00 AM 1B( "y 487
2-3:-G0 PM 212 204 806
3r-4:00 PR 305 288 503
Gowar West Elamantary Scheal

Gower West Elementary School has 2 lolal enroliment of 524 students in Grades K thru 4 and an aarly
chiidhoad program (iwo hati-day sessions). Burng the pandemic, the sthoot is open wilh in class learning
with 15-18% of the students electing to leamn at home. Table 2 shows 1he breakdown by grade.

Tabie 2
Gowsr West Current Studunt Populstion
Gravr | Saxients
ECC 29
K 80
1 8D
F 108
3 83
4 103
Yoisl |  B24

The schaol's population & slable and is not sxpacted o grow. IE hours of operstion are shown below in
Tabile 3,

Tabie 3
Gower West Hours of Dperation
K4 8:30 AM to 3:20 PM

B:4D AM to 11:15 AM
Early Chiddhood | 15 4 'oa 10 250 PM

Historic Site Circulation

Prior to the 2020-2021 school yeer, the schoot bus and student loading both otourred on the north side of
Ihe school. School huses entered the west driveway on Shendan Driva, loaded on the north side of the
schotl atfiacent to the buiding. and then exted via Sheridan Drive (East Driveway) or onto Clarandon Hills
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Parents were directed to approach the schppl from the south via Cherry Tree Lane, tum right onto Sheridan
Brive, tun right again into the West Driveway, uss the outer lane fo pick up their students, and then exit
ontd Sheridan Drive. Figure 3 filustrates the previpus travel paths used by paren! vehicies and schogol
buses.

This plan was not idesl sinoe it mixed bus and parent traffic in the same ares with students crossing the
scheo! hus lane. Also, parant vehicles were stacking norhbound on Cherry Tree Lane that interfered with
the acoess to the singls-Tamily homes.

Current Site Circulatlon

For this school yaar, the schopl bus loading zone has been moved 10 the east soe of the schoot 10 separts
the bus and student loading areas. Schop! buses enter the north outbound-only driveway on Clarendon
Hllls Road, ioad siong the east side of tha school and axit onio Clarendon Hills Road.

Parenis folicw the same basic path excepl sfer they enfer the school fof, they are direcied further south
into the school parking lot ta the playground area before entering the loading area adjacent to the schaal
building. Exhibit 2 Nustrates the existing timulatien pattarms.

These changes sliminated ibe combined loading area of buses and parent vehicles wilh studants crossing
the bus lane and increased the on-sie stacking for parent vehicles reducing the queueing on Cherry Tree
Lane, There iz a confiict between the exiting parent trafiic and enlering buses a4 the northem Glarendon
Hills Road during the maming arrival perigd.

Arrival Period Dbservations

Figld abservation were conducied on May 120, 2021 during the moming asival and aflernoon dismissal
periods.

1. Acontractor vehicle for the apariments was parked on the northside of Sheridan Drive and parfially
inferfered wilh traffic operations,

2. The vehicles parked on the soulh side of Sherdan Drive wera school staff.

3. Acrossing guard was posted at the inlersection of Midway Orive and Clarendon Hills Road to help
students cross both strests.

4. Schoogl buses envered the norih outbound school drive while parant raffic entered. Schoot busas
would wait for parents make their tumns before entering the site_ This conflict is undesimble.

5. Some parents traveling wastbound on Sheridan rive would make a U-tum o gel In the eastbound
gueue enterjng the schadd,

8. The peak queue of vehicles on Cherry Tree Lane was four yehicios. The lotal drop-ofl queus was
30 vehicles on-site, Sheridan Drive. and Charry Trasy Lans.

7. Argouple of parenis parked and dropped thelr siudents on the north side of Sheridan Dnve

3l [N o, W, e 2y He oL
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ARernoan Dismissal Observations
1. Approximately 12 vahicles were parked an the norlh side of Shendan Drive picking up students,

2. Beveral vahicles were observed going weslbound on Shendan Drive, laft on Blackberry Lane, lsh
on Hawthorne Lane, and lsfi on Chany Tme Lane to entar the back of the vahicle gueve.

3. Tha peak queus of vehicles on Charry Trae Lans wax 41 vehicles. The total drop-off queus was
70 vahicles en-eds, Sharidan Drive, and Charry Tresy L ane.

4. Done by 3:35 PM.
Proposed Site Circulation

The proposed stie plan incdudes expansion to the bufiding to the south for the school district administration
#@nd a new EC playground on the north side of the school,

Under the proposed plen, the seven school buses will be separated complutely from parent traffic and loed
on the east side of the school. The north driveway on Clarsnden Hills Road will be shanged fa tnhound only
for achool buses and staff parking from the exdaling cuthound oniy drive. The southem drive witl move
further south and remain two-way with one lane in gnd one lane out Ip allow access to the parking lot south
of the administration area. Figures § and § (justrate the bus kavel route and queueing afong the east side
of the sshool. There is more than adequate storage for the seven full size buses used by the schoot.

Farent traflic will follow the same path by entering wa Cherry Troe Lane to Sheridan Drive and exiting on
Sheridan Drive. in the morning, they will pull up along the west side of the schopl, drop off their student,
and then leave, Hnwever.htheﬂfﬁamoondisnm:lpabd,t#wyvﬁllllmuplnfourrmnnmaphynmmd
to minimize any queusing on BhwidanDﬂvemdﬁhanmiLan&SohudMandamﬁleﬂmapp
Wil then call studenta from the gym to the 16 vehicles waiting In the four Bnss, This will double the number
of vehicies able to load versug the single e curb fane. Porents will not be able to leave until all cars are
loaded and ready o go. School siaff will then direct each lane {o exit by lane and let in the naxt 18 vehitles.
Makmmfmzsmhmhsmkamﬂahﬁm&mﬂowmgmmmdmemmmmia
Leine which can accommodate 28 mare vehicies along the schoofs frentage. Figures 7 and 8 Busirales
the parent's reute and queuing,

Overadl, the voluma of schea! traflic will ramain the same but the iImprovements including @ separale bus
loading aree and more on-site queuing will improve trafic oparations snd sately at the school and on the
public rosd system.

Trip Goneration

Tmﬁnesﬁmﬁsmmsdebrﬁmexisﬁngsﬁﬂmﬁamingnaﬂunﬂpg&nemﬁm data from the Inslitite of
Transpottation Engineers Trip Generation Manual, 107 Edition. The rate of vehicle Fip generation was
appfied io the studeat population with the resulls shown in Table 4. Thaee caloulsted volumes are likely
Iiylmmmwhatammﬂymdwmmammnﬁgen!smdmmgsd’mlhmes.

Tahle 4
Gower Weat Estimatad Traffic Volumes
e : . . L e
£ Ot | Tomr e | Cad | Tk
524 Studenms w0 | 181 | o1 |0 | o 178
School Bus Ridership

Gower West Bcheo! s served by seven lange school buses. For the yesr 2018-2020 school yadr, the pre-
pandemic ridership averaged 333 studants or 64% of the student populalion. During the 2020-2021 schaol
year. the bus ridership dropped 1o 250 students (25% drop in ridership) due fo a combination of etidents
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staying home end students electing 1o not use the bus as msuilt of the pandemic. The decrease m bus
ridarship resulted in & corresponding increase of parenis driving their students to schoal. The drop in
stiydent attendance from the pandemic s approximately 58 students {11% of 524 total students) The
temporary drop in bus usage is 93 students.

The Eary Childhood prograny has two small school buses. Currendly theee are no deycare achool buses
at the sohool,

Parking

The Village of Willowhrook Zoning Code requires ane parking space for each faculty member pius one
space for each ofher full lime emyloyes al nursery, elementary and junior high schools. Gower West
Elementary School has between 95 fo 100 faculty/sieff on-site including the distict adminstration
personnat. The required perking for the school is 100 spaces. School staff hae moicatad that more on-sile
parking is desiable,

A parking inventory and survey was conducied sl and around the school on May 12. 2021. On schoal
property, the parking sreas was separated into four areas with a iolal of 102 spaces:

{1} East Lot wih 30 spaces on the east slde bf the buliding.

{2} Morth Lot with 34 spaces north of the bullding aleng Sheridan Drive.
(3} Was! Lot with 38 spacas wast of the playground.

(%1 Wast Playground with na marked spaces.

Vehides parked on the south side of Sheridan Drve ware school staff parking for the day. On-strast parkap
can'L he counted toward the number of availzhle spaces for zoning purposes.

Tahie 6
Gower West Parking
E"“'- —~ AT T e T T o e _:-L_. i r— et s ey
e ! Ay 5"-"“'\? ST 1y f;: i e E IR i
ey | fugedier § Gisdler | ame | Tusna Fagelg  Awidpl | A0% Totw
Easl ot I 2 30 2] 47 - 2 L1
Adminatration Lot | ' L 1 = -1 - | =
Norits Lot 28 3 3 3 28 - 11 3 14
Wast Lot 3 - - L] 25 &7 - - 47
p‘mm. IMH - . - - ﬁ
e =
| S by of Shesan; | S I L. ,
Totals B9 ] & Wz 84 (82%) 114 1" & 130

A7 Vorncios parked 1t he play@ind e & e schaol in uriparked pareng ores.
(2] Biail vehicles perking slong the South sxie of Sheridan birve nert fo #he schaol

Overall, the number of avalleble spaces exvead the number of parked vehicles on campus and on Sheridan
Drive.

The proposed plan axceads the village parking requirement with o total of 130 parking spaces and meets
accassible tode requirement of 5 spaces. The number of spaces exceeds the parking survey damand of
84 spaces and adds 2B spaces on-sife. The exira spaces will minimize after hours paridng on the
surrunding strasts during schogl events.

Nationa! parking dals is avaiiable from the Institule of Tsensportation Enginesrs (ITE) in their publication
Perking Deneration, 5™ Edition lor slementary schools (Land Use Code 520). The peak demand in the ITE
data was 5B spaces bassd on the student count (524 sludants) or 85 spaces biased on the slaff count (100
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staft). Copy of the caloulafions are in the Appenadix. The higher nusmber (85 spaces) would be used 1o be
conservative and is less than the proposed supply.

Direction Distribution

Gowar West Schoal is located on the west sids Tor (he school district restiling in the majarity of vehicular
traffic 4 the eite from Clarandon Hills Read {north and suuth). Sheridan Drive has a limilsd right-
infout driveway at its west end on 57% Street which servas a iimiled seourt of school residaris.

Nmmnllyuvarﬂowparkingfarupsdaiaunualﬂuschmllssmmnudahdhyacumbinaﬁmdﬁgoﬁ-
sbuatpmﬁngalthesdﬂolandun-skaetparﬁngbylheschual.Limiladmimetparkingiaaﬂilnh!enaar
ihe site The excess parking provided on-site will mindmize the amount of paridng on-street during schao!
events.

Crash Dats

EEA oblained vehicie/pedestriap orash data trom IDOT fx a {ive-year period (2011 o 2015) around the
kchool o identiy any crash irencs thal may affect the study srea intersectionz. The JDOT Buresu of Dala
Collection requires the following statement be placed on any work product ihat incoTporates of relerences
Inalr data.

DISCLAIMER: The molor vehicle orash deta relsrenced hersin was provided by the
linois Depertiment of Transportaifon. Any conclusions drawn from analysis of the
aforementioned date are the sole respensibily of the daia reciplent(s) Addifonaty, for
coding years 2015 lo present. the Buresy of Dots Collection uses the sxact
iatitudedongitude suppiied by the inveatigating lew enforcament agency to jocats crashes,
Therofore, locafion data may vary in previous yeers since dala prior to 2015 was
physicafly focetet by bureay personned,
A iotai of five crashis were found aver the five-year period or one crash per year arcund the scipol, Of
these crashes, iwo crashes occwyed dusing normal school hours,

A copy of the IDOT crash reports are located in the Appendix andi only the show printouls for the years
wimauhm.mmmnommmonmdmmummmmmmdm
intersections or driveways, the same: crash date shows up n several intersection's reports. IDOT uses a
250-foot radius from an intersection o report deta.

Tolde & )
Roadway Crash Data ear Gower Wast Elemantary School
S—— ; s B e S
A ashed . 1 Sheridan Dnive c1:
Elmproni MR RoM | sheddanDavect | - E, Schoet B e
Yy St By i Dhagn T beee Ctamwndon Hils Rowmr Por
St Dt A 4 Enirgsios | Clomendon Hills Reen oc iy
’ ‘ -7 Bohonl Exi
2015 - - - '
P . : e | 1
1.7, - Crash 1 - Tewnmg - Propsdy Diamage
27 . Bty 3 30 P4 Frdny 3.5 P 2
1 - Sicpew)
2mag | 7 e e— : : 1
% - ,
=l = — 1047 1.l .
Yol | e ' 1 ' 3 s

ShuidanDrmummnfmmeuneurlnamolonmuhadapmdbuimwymhmmm
westbound vehicles with one furning left and the other passing/overtaking the tuming vehwde. It oecurred
on & Saturday and is not likely schaol related.

MR TP ¥ -5 ve SR ey
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O Clarendon Hiils Road, at eilther Midway Orive or the south school entrance, there wasa property damags
sideswipe crash batween twa nerthbound vehicles. It pecumed at 7:44 PM on a Thursday and is not ikaty
schoo! related.

Sideswipe, #kely on Sherdan Drive, near Clarendon Hifls Road occurred during the afternoon dismissal
period. A southbeking bus hit & parked car on Sheridan Drive. Wiih the refocation of the schioo) buses
joading to the sast side of the sehodl, this s unlikely to happen again. A fhird crash occurred on 2 Sundey
evening with a northbaund vehicle turning lefl Bnd struck by a southbolmcd vehicle.

No arash Irends were dentified thal requined addilional mitigaling measures.
Condlusion

Basad on this irafiic review, the changes to Gower West Elsmentary School will hava a positive bensfit at
the school and the surcunding roadways:

1. The proposed expansion of the schoo! bulding and sdminisiralion spaces Wil provide more
programming space lor he exisling shidenl population.

The exisling sludent populaiion |s stable for the foresseabls future.
Schaoo! traffic votumes due o the pandeémic are higher than the pre-pandemic conditions.
A meview of five years of crash gala did nol reveal any safety problems.

The complate separation of bus and parent beffic on-siie will Improve site eirgulation and impact
on the rest of the streel network, The existitg conflict between school buses snd paren! vehicles is
eliminated st the norih diveway on Clarendon Hills Road.

§. lWis secommended that schoo| staff be prohibited from parking off-siyeet near the school includng
the south side of Sheridan Drive.

7. The abtiity to load more vehlcles at a lime will significantly reduce the afismoon dismissal queve
along Cherry Tree Lane.

8. Tne revised site plan provides 130 parking spaces on-sife which exceeds the zoning code
requirsmenis, ihe parking survey resulis, and national parking dala resulis

o oa W oN
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APPENDIX

Gower West Scope of Work
School Bus Ridership Data
DuPage DOT Counts
2015-2019 Crash Data

ITE Worksheets

Vehicle Path Exhibits
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Traffic & Parking Summary
Suggested Scope of Work

A traffic and parking summary should be prepared for the proposed addion to the Gower West Elementary
School located at 7650 Clarendon iills Road in Willawbreok. The study should be prepared in accordance
with the Institute of Transportation kngincers {ITE) guidelines and include the follewing fasks:

{.

bt

Ln

1.

Obiain operational characteristics reluted to the existing site and surrounding area, including available
recent truffic counts comduckad by the 1ifinuis Department of Trangporiation andior others along
surrounding roadways.

Obtain and analyze crash data from IDO1°s Division of Safety andvor the Village of Willowbrook for
the most recent five (5) years for the site vicinity, including the existing site access driveways, to
determine the current tevel of operation and identify safety issues.

Perform observations during the peak moming student arrival and afienoon departure Lo identify
curremt characteristics and opevationul issues associated with student drop-off and pick-up for both the
elementary school, as well as the early childhood center. Panticular atrention should be paid 1o stackmg
capecity and conflict points between buses, passenger cars, pedestrians and bicyclist.

Coordinate with school officials to review the curreni parking operations polices. identifying the
number of existing parking spaces and the desipnated user{s), as well as existing concers and problem
RICHS.

Perform a parking ulilization swrvey Lo identify the current parking demand rate per student/stall at
the subject site parking facilities, including all site users: elementary school, early childhood center
and school district staflifaculty, drop-offpick-up pasking for the emly childhood center and vistors,
Determine project characteristics, including trip gencrations, traffic distribution and tralfic
assignments for the voluine of additional raffic anticipated by the proposed addition, as applicable/if
aty, including growth in student/staf¥ populations and/or internal site operation modifications,
including student drop-offrpick-up, loading and parking areas. Trip generition rates should be based
on published rates contaived in current edition of the ITF Trip Generation Handbook, 10% Fdition,
foca dnta collected from the existing site, and/or local data obtained from similer uscs.

Provide a qualitative analysis of the development'’s impacts on the surrounding roadway network.
Recommend any intersection and/or access impravements, if necessary, to accommodate the project
walfic llows beth on and ofT site.

Project fulpre parkig demand, associated with the potential growth in studenstafl population, us
applicable, based wpon factors as developed by ITE, local parking ondinance and‘or local data
collected, Recommendation should be made to the amount of parking. the sssignment of the parking
and access/circulation of the parking lots, as necesssry.

Prepare an Aute Turn analysis to ensure emergency und design vehicles van adequately circulate on-
and off-site.

Prepare o project stmmary memorandum. including exhibits and tables. as necessary.
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From: Gina Rodewald <grodewald@gowerfi2.com>
Sent: Sunday, February 14, 2021 10:30 PM
To: Steve Coworan
Ce: Tim MeGrath
Subject: fa: Gower West Site Traffic Questians
Hi, Steve,

I hope this message finds you well...warm and safe in yet anather winter weather advisory!

Getting back ta you on the ndership of Gower West buses in a typical school year. Below find the number of students
on each bus for both the AM and PM routes. The numbers do fluctuate depending on after school activitles and those
students who attend before and after school care due to parents’ work schedules. ¥ you have any further guestions,
please et me know.

Thanks!
gina

Bus Ridership for 2019-2020 g-Fantiemic

*Note: No Bus #6

s AM Ll

1 58 57

2 a7 26

3 56 57

% 54 4

5 51 50
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05 Fidership Tor -

*Note: No Bus #6 Duting Pandemic
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A . FIEZ : wald <grodewnid@rowerb, com> wrote;
Great. I'll be expecting your cali,

630 286-4924 15 my direct line,
Gina

On Tue, Feb 2, 2021 at 4;72 PM Steve Coreoran <scorcoran@ess-lid.coms wrete:

Should be



Stephan B. Corcaran, PE (iL. IN. M MO, Wi}, FTOE
p847.233 4804 B 21

m &e1-254.9792

ERiksa0n ENERIEERING ARBGLIATES. LTD.
26 Years | Civil | Traffc & Parking | Landscape Architeciure
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from: Gina Redewald <zradewald@gowerbZ com>
fient: Tuesday, February 2, 2021 4:15 #M
To: Steve Corcoran <sco

Ce: Tim MicGrath MMM“
Subject: Re: Gower West Site Traffic Questions

Hi, Steve,

10:30 works for me. | have ta finish by 11:00 Will that be a sufficient amount of time to get us started?

gina

On Tue, Feb 2, 2021 at 3:32 PM Steve Corcoran escorzoranifigea-td.com»> wrate:

How about 10:30 somnrrow? (Wed)

Stephen B. Corcoran, PE (1L N, M|, MO, W), PTOE
£ 847 Z23 4504, En. 24

m BAT-254-0792

ErrEany CHoLEEREE ABBDCICTES LTD
25 Years | Civil { Tral; & Parkng | Landscapa Aschitesiure

Wingie WS wiimily | ¢ =nened | Yy gaa-ig e om

(5%



Fram: Gina Redewsld <grodewsld @gowersl.com>

Eernit: Monday, February 1, 2021 4:03 PM
To: Steve Corgaean <seortoran@een-td.com»
Ce: Tim McGrath <tmegrath@greenassocistes.com»

Subject: Re: Gower West Site Traffic Questions

Hi, Steve,

Unfortunately, | have had to schedule another meeting at that time tomerrow. | could meet at 3:007

Wednesday | am stilf availabie betweezn @ and 11:00 ar noon and 1:45 and afier 3:00,

If you need additional times, please let me know,

Thanks!

On Mon, feb 1, 2021 at 3:33 PM Steve Corcoran ssgorcoran@ers-tid.coms wrote:
Gina,

Lets say Noon tomorrow, Shall  call you at the number below?

Stephen B. Corcoran, PE (Il IN. MI. MO. Wi} PTOE
p 847.223.4804. Ext. 2%

m 8412540700

Crnason ENGINEERNG ABSGHItATES LITL
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From: Gina Rodewald <gro com»
Sant: Monday, February 1, 2021 10:03 AM
To: Steve Corcoran <scorcoran@eeadid com>

Ce: Tim McGrath <rcerath@erepnassedates com>
Subject: Re: Gower West Site Traffic Questions

Hi, Steve.

My availability this week;

Tuesday 2/2 - Between 11:30 and 12:30 and anytime after 3:00 P

Wednesday 2/3 - Betweer 9:00 and 11:00, between 12:00 - 1:30 and after 3:00

Thurssday, 2/4 - After 1330 but before 4;30,

Friday, 2/5 - Between 9 and 11:00 and between 12:30 antd 4:00

Contact information below. Let me know what werks for you.

Gy Rodeveold
Printipet

Eawsy trest Schaof



FESE Corpndon Mill Read

Willowbrook, illinofs 50527
ph 5302864528

§638.323.6498

On Mo, Feb 1, 2021 at 8:48 AM Steve Corcorap <scorcorani@ees-itd.rom» wrote:

Gina,
Let me know when we could schedule a phane call this week and your contact infermation.

Sincerely

Staphen B. Corcoran, PE (1L, IN Mt MD, W), PTOE
p 8472234804 Ex. 21
m E4T-254-8792

Eminatr CLsiNEC@inGg ABSIEIATRES, LTO.
25 Years | Civil | Traflic & Parking | Landscape Architechire

i | WheCuns | ntkea | vewis eua-hd e

From: Ginz Rodewsld <giodewald @power§2 com>
Sent: Sunday, January 31, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Tim McGrath <imearath@eresnassaciotes. coms

Cc: Steve Corcoran <soorcermnfiess -Sd, »
Subject: Re: Gower West Site Traffic Questions



Looking forwsard to maeting and working with you Stevel

gina

On Fri, Jan 29, 2021 at 2:00 PM Tim McGrath gmcprath jatms.C 00y WIDte:

Hi Gina,

) wanted fo inroduce you to Steve Cocoran (our cvil engineering traffic consultant). He has & question or two for
yau and wilt reach out 1o you dirsctly.

Thanks Gina....

Tim McGrath, AlA, REFP
Drector of Desgn
:[ABSOCIATES

relephone B47-317-0852 x167
diract B47-787-1866

mobile B47-651-0796

Fedlaw wus on {0F 21y for news and Updates bh our prajecis

Ty 3 wfenfa) inft Fi 13 Iritendied oty for the oiiguel nomed. if you e not the pumpd oudressee you shoukd rat
Jisseminote. diTnbule oy cony this o-mid. Plagse ooty the sender smeditel by e-mail  you hove recesed tha e-mad by imistoke and gelpte ths e-molt
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Memorandum

TO: Carocle Pugh
Green Associgles
FROM: Stephen 8. Corcoren, P.E., PTOE
Dirsttor of Traffic Engineering
DATE: July 30, 2021
RE: Gower West Eiementary School

7660 Clarendon Hills Road
Willowbrook, liinois

Eriksson Engineering Associates (EEA) reviewed the comments on the proposed site circulation and
parking plans &t Gower Wasl Elementary S8chool from the Village of Willowbrook's traffic consuitan! dated
April 21, 2021, Their commenis and the project team’s responses are noted below:

1.

A study should be provided that incfudes the impact of the proposed site modifications on traffic,
parking and on-she circulation. Please see attached supgested scope of work. It should also address
the items noted below. Note: This study could be an expansion of the Erlksson Engineering
Associales (EEA) circulation and parking memorandum dated March 23, 2021, as this
documentation includes some of the requested information. Response: A revised memorandum
has been prepared and submitted.

It is unclear from the EEA circulation and parking memorandum if the student enroliment of 530
includes the early childhood center (EC) students. Similarly, does the identifiad 100 faculty/staff
inciude the early childhood program staffffactilty? Response; The school enrolimant includes the
EC students and staff.

Are there any modifications proposed / classroom additions within the existing schopl building?
Response; The propose modHications within the school are renovations of the existing
classrooms and educational spaces. The number of classroems and student poputation will
remain the same.

Although there may not be any near-term growth anticipated within the school district {no change in
student/staff population with the addition), the propased modifications should identify / consider the
ultimate capacity (i.e., by increase in number of classrooms and/or incrésgse in buliding equare-
fovtage)} n the study. Responsé: As noted in Comment #3, there will be no Increase in the
number of class rooms.

Where do the EC drop-off and pick-up operations coour? Are thera any modifications to these
operations planned with the addifion/site improvements? Will there be an increase in the number of
EC students/siaff with the planned school modifications? What is the curent/proposed mode of
transportation for the EC students? Are there designated parking spaces for EC sludent drop-
offfpick-up? Response:

a. The EC loading currently occurs at the northeast corner of the building with the two
small buses ipading In the north side of the building and parents on the east side of
the building In the east lot.

b. Yes, the EC loading is moving to the west side of the new EC playground along the
north side of the building.

c. Noincrease anticipated in EG attendance.

d. EC students are primarily transporied to and from school by their parents and two
small scheol buses,

& No designated parking for EC.
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10.

it

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

| Ms, Carcle Pugh - 7.30.20%)

is staff parking assigned? The disconnect of the parking lots with a new EC playground has the
patential to impact op-site circulation / additional traffic on the adjacent streets. Response: Staff
parking is not assigned and the disconnect between the east and north parking areas will
simplify site circuilation options, limit conflict polnts, and improve safety, EEA recommends
that staff be prohibited from parking along Sheridan Driva.

Have concem with the conversion of the northern access on Clarenden Hills Read from egress only
fo entrance only given its proximity tc the Sheridan Drive intergaction. Opportunities for redesigning
the sile and closure of the northetn access on Clarendon Hills Road should be considered.
Resporige: The east parking lot will primarily be used by staff and school buses which for
the most part have different arrival times than the general student population. This will
minimize any confiicts with traffic turning onto Clarendon Hills Road from Sheridan Drive. It
will be safer than the current comtiitions of the driveway and Sheridan Drive eastbound
fuming onte Clarendon Hills Road in close proximity.

Have conoern refated to the functionality/usability of the four northern parking spaces ({to the aast of
the proposed EC playground) accessed via the northem acecess on Clarendon Hills Road.
Response: This Is staff parking which has a low turnover and entry/exit &t non-peak times.

On the propieed site circuiation plan (Exhibit 3), the purpose of the channslizing Island to the south
of the Sheridan Drive west access is unclear, including the circulation pattem for how vehicles
parked in the northernmost eight parking spaces are to egress the site (i.e., is it one-way southbound
adjacent to the spaces and vshicles need to travel south fo find a space to tumaround 1o exit to the
right of the island?). Also, is the island fo be painted or raised/mountable? Response: The purpose
of the isldnd is to proactively direct parents to the student loading area. it will be painted.

We concur with providing site modificetions to improve site circulation, separate users and Increase
stacking (for buses and parent drop-ofifpick-up) to minimize conflicts bath on- and eff-site,
Response: None required.

A traffic management plan should be provided, indicating how the proposed aftemoon student
toading will be marniaged, i.e., number/placement of staff, will cones/bollards be used to manage/fil
the multiple lanes, etc. 1o minimize the potential for conflicts. Response; Please vefer to revised
trafflc study for detafls.

It Is unclear frem the documentation provided if a new, saparate bus lane will be constructed to the
west of the existing paved area, Without a separaté bus lane, is access restricted / blocked for staff,
emergency vehicies, etc. and for what duration? Response: No separate bus lane is proposed
and staff parking will be restricted during the afternoon dismissal untll after the buses leave.
The approximate duration is 15 to 20 minutes.

Are the seven existing buses that serve the school full size buses? Are there any smafler schodl
buses that serve the schoo!? Response: There are two small buses that serve the EEC program.
‘Their arrival and departure are offset from the seven regular stzad school buses.

Are the school buses stored on site? If so, where and for what timeframe? Response: Schoal
buges are not stored on-site.

Are there any private (i.e., afterschool program/daycare) vans or buses that serve the school? i so,
how many and whers do they unlcadfioad under sxisting andfor future conditions? Response: None
at this time.

An exhibi should be provided that illustrates the proposed school bus stacking, ensuring adequate
slorage Is provided on-site without impeding on- or off-site operations, Response: Exhibit added
in revised memorandum.

Measures should be implemented / continued 1o reduce vehicular braffic (parent drop-offipick-up),
including providing bicycle parking on-site that is easily accessible and programs/education to
encourage the use of school buses and non-auto modes (walking/biking) as primary means 1o
access the school. Response; Gower West Elementary is a district-wide school serving afl the
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1 | s, Corole Pugh + 7.30.202)

students from EC thru 4 Grade. Given the students age range, the majority of the students
are beyond the néasonable distance for bicycle usage or walking to and from school. Field
observations during good weather this spring showed students from the adjacent restdential
areas walking. Currently, schoo! buses are used by 66% of the existing student population.
EEA supports the encouragement of alternate transporiation modes and Increased bus
usage. The expected reduction in vehicular traffic would be minimal.

School operations should be reviewed after the completion of the addition / site improvements to
determine If chahges and/or modifications are needed. Response: The school district witl review
and modify arrival and dismissal procedures and make adjustments on a continuous basie.

*5 Copenerce Dvae. Saise 2 G palplos, 1L 9803RD PoF Pl skt
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Memo

Date: February 3, 2022

To:  EBunice Im, AICP
Planning Consultant, Village of Willowbreok

From: Lynn M, Means, P.E., PTOE, RSP1
Senior Transportation Engineer, BLA, Inc.

Re:  Gower West Elementary School
7650 Clarendon Hills Road
Willowbrook, Illinois

BLA, Inc. is in receipt of the following documentation for the referenced project:

¢ Gower West Elementary Traffic, Site Circulation and Parking Memorandum, prepared by
Friksson Engineering Associates (EEA), dated July 30, 2021.
e Disposition of Comments prepared by EEA, dated July 30, 2021.

We have reviewed the documentation provided and found it to adequately address our previous
comments, questions and concemns with regards to traffic, parking and on-site circulation. We concur
with the study’s findings that the proposed site modifications will improve site circulation, separate
users, increase off-street parking supply, as well as increase stacking (for both buses and parent drop-
off/pick-up activities), minirnizing conflicts both on- and off-site.

Please do not hesitate to contact BLA, Inc. at 630-438-6400 should you have any questions.
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tem

| Code Section oe

Ordinance

W
|
|

g
Code Requirement

Proposed

I

| Departure

Number Of Buildings
On Lots

9-3-3(A)

There shall be permitted
only one principal building
per lot.

One principle building

None

Division Of Lots

9-3-3(8}

No lot shall hereafter be
divided into 2 or more lots
unless ail lots resulting from
each such division shall
conform with all the
applicable bulk regulations
of the zoning district in
which such lots are located.

N/A

None

Multiple Uses On A Lot

53-3(C)

Where 2 or more perinitted
or special uses, each
requiring a min. lot area,
are provided on the same
lot, the required lot area for
such uses shall be the sum
of the areas required for
each use individually.

1use=1acre

8,58 acres

None

Yards On A Lot

9-3-3(D)1

All required yards allocated
to a structure shall be
located on the same zoning
lot as such structure.

Lot Consolidation will ensure
that all yards allocated to a
structure are located on the
same zoning lot as such
structure.

None

9-3-3{D)2

No yards allocated to a
structure or use existing on
the effective date of this
saction shall be
subsequently reduced or be
further reduced below the
yard requirement set forth
In this title, except the yard
adjoining a street may be
reduced in depth or width
In the event and to the
extent that the right-of-way
width of such street
adjoining such yard is
subsequently increased.

N/A

None

Landstape And
Maintenance

9-3-3(E)

The owner of any lot
located within the Village
shall be responsible for the
landscape and maintenance
of such iot.

School District is responsible
for landscape maintenance of
their properties.

None

Minimum Lot Frontage

9-3-3{F)

In no case shall the front lot
line be less than seventy
five percent {75%} of the
required lot width in the
applicable district.

Required Lot Width in R1
District = 150

Front Lot Line is approx,
517.14

None

Control Over Use

o building or tract of land shalt be devoted to any use and no building or
structure or part thereof shall be erected, raised, moved, reconstructed,
extended, enlarged or altered, except fn conformity with the regulations
herein established and specified for the district in which it is located and after
obtaining written permission from the Director of Municipal Services as
provided hereln. Except as may be otherwise provided, when a use Is not
specifically listed as a permitted, special or accessory use in any specific
zoning district, such use shall be expressly prohibited.

1




Municipal Exemption

Municlpal services of the Village shall be exempt from the provisions of this
title providing, however, that a public hearlng shail be held prior to the
construction of any building if such proposed building does net comply with
the district's regulations.

Special Uses

936

Te provide for the location of certain uses hereinafter specified which are
deemed desirable for the public welfare within a given district or districts, but
which might have an adverse effect upon nearby properties, or upon the
character and future development of the district in which they are located, a
classification of special uses is hereby established. Procedures for special uses
are set forth elsewhere In this title.

Clarendon Hitls Road
Setback

9-3-7(B)1

74'-11" to existing building;

Same for addition .

70

Yards, General

9-3-8(A)

All new structures shall conform to the bulk regulations established herein for
the district in which each structure Is located. Further, no existing structure
shall be enlarged, reconstructed, structurally altered, converted or relocated
In such a manner as to conflict or to further conflict with the bulk regulations
of this title for the district in which such structure i5 located.

9-3-8(8)

The min. yard space required for one structure shall not again be considered
as yard space for another adjoining structure.

9-3-8(C)

Except as may be otherwise permitted under this title, no lot shall be
subdivided, reduced in area or otherwise modified or used so that such lot
shall not at all times comply with each and every reguirement of this title or
any other applicable pravision of this Code.

5-3-8{D)

The maintenance of yards, open space, min. ot area and other bulk
regulations legally required for a structure shall be a continuing obligation of
the property owner as long as the structure is in existence. Further, no
required yards, open space, min. lot areas or other bulk regulations allocated
for any structure shall, by virtue of a change in ownership or for any other
reason, be used to satisfy yard, open space, min. lot area or other bulk
regulations for any other structure.

Fioodplain Regulations

9-3-9[A}

Floodplaln Area: Is known as the special flocd hazard area which indudes
those lands within the jurisdiction of the Village that are subject to inundation
by the base flood. The special flood hazard areas of the Village are generally
|dentified as such on the flood Insurance rate map of the Village prepared by
the Federal Emergency Management Agency, dated September 30, 1983, or
as may be subsequently updated from time to time. The special flood hazard
areas of those parts of unincorporated DuPage County that are within the
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the Village or that may ke annexed into the
Village are generally identified as such on the fleod insurance rate map
prepared for DuPage County by the Federal Emergency Management Agency,
dated December 4, 1985, or as may be subsequentiy updated from time to
time.

9-3-9(B)

Floodway: That portlon of the special flood hazard area required to store and
convey the base flood. The floodway for the special flood hazard areas of 63rd
Street Ditch and East Branch Sawmill Creek is delineated on the flood
boundary and floodway map prepared by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency, dated September 30, 1983, or as may be subsequently
updated from time to time. The floodway for each of the remaining special
flood hazard areas of the Village shall be according to the best data available
to the lllinois State Water Survey Floodplain Information Repository.

Trallers, Boats and
Other Unlicansable
Vehicles

9-3-10

See Code Section. N/A None

Public Service and
Utllity Uses

2-3-11

See Code Section. N/A None

Previously Platted Lots

9-3-12

See Code Section. N/A None

2




Puklic Sanitary Sewer

Al uses in the Village are
required to be serviced with
public sanitary sewer
service and public water

Serviced with public sanitary

and Public Water 9313 supply, excepting Municipal | 2™ sewer and water supply. |
Service uses, and parks, and single-

farnily detached residences See 67-0-02.

fn the R-1 Residential

District.
Model Home 9-3-14 See Code Section, N/A None
Regulations
Antennas And Towers
For Personal Wireless 9-3-15 See Code Section. N/A None
Senvices
Aboveground Service | o 5 3 See Code Section, N/A None

Facliities

urche, convents, '
rectories, parsonages and
schools (elementary, Junior
high and high schools),
provided that such uses
Special Uses 5.5A-2 may only be permitted Elementary '.fchool on None
- Clarendon Hills Road
along the following
roadways: Madison Street,
Clarendon Hills Road, Route
B3, 63rd Street, 75th Street
or Plainfield Road.
Elementary: 5 acres plus 1
acre per 100 students =
Minimur Lot Area 9-52-3{A)6 designed enroliment BS54 srwi wa Ll 1o
capacty
reipirited
530 students = 10.2 acres
Minimum Lot Width 9-5A-3(B) 150° 517.14 None
Minirmum Lot Depth 9-5A-3(C) 150° 730 None
Minimum Front Yard
(Sheridan Drive) 9-5A-3(D)1 60° » &0 None
Minimum Interior Side Greater of 15' or 10% of Lot
Yard 9-5A-3(D)2 Width N/A MNone
Minimurm Exterior Side
iy 9-5A-3(D)3 50 >50° None
{Clarendon Hills Road &
Cherry Tree Lane)
Minimum Rear Side 9-5A-3(D}4 50 > 50 None
Yard
Average setback does not
Minimum Average apply since residential lots
Setback SEEAEa(0) to the south are all rear N/A tone
yards.
Maximum Lot Coverage | 9-5A-3(E) 30% 26.93% None
Maximum Height 9-54-3(F) The lesser of 35 or 2 33" at Gym Fascia None
stories.
Maximum FAR 9-5A-3(G) 0.30 0.24 None




Mintmum Habitable
Floor Area

Existing Parking
Facllities

9-5A-3(H)

9-10-5(4)

Accessory off street parking
facilities located on the
same lot as the structure or
use served shall not be
reduced below the
requirements for off street
parking set forth in this
chapter

Lot Consolidation will ensure
off street parking is located on
the same lot as the structure.

None

Location

5-10-5{8)

See Code.

N/A

None

Size

9-10-5{C}

A required off-street
parking space shall have a
width and length, exclusive
of access drives, aisles,
ramps and maneuvering
space, In accordance with
standards set forth in this
chapter. Enclosed parking
spaces shall have a vertical
clearance of at least 7',

Al dimensions confirmed:
Space width parallel to aisle =
1047

Space depth to wall = 17.2
{per note #2 below the
module table in the zoning
ordinance, 19" may be
deducted from dimension for
overhang if curb is provided

None

9-16-5{D}

Access: Each required off-
street parking space shalf
open directly upon an alsle
or driveway of a width and
design In accordance with
the standards set forth in
this chapter. All off-street
parking facilities shall be
provided with appropriate
means of vehicular access
to a street or alley. The
location and design of the
intersection of a parking
area access driveway and
the street or alley shall be
in accordance with
regulations set forth in this
chapter.

Width of aisles and driveways
are acceptable

Use

9-10-5(E)

Accessory off-street parking
facilities, as necessary to
uses listed herein, shall be
solely for the parking of
sutomobiles of patrons,
occupants or employees.
When bus transportation is
provided for patrons,
occupants or employees of
a specific establishment,
additional open or enclosed
off-street parking spaces for
buses to ba parked on the
premlises shall be provided.

Additional off-street parking
spaces for buses will not be
provided.

Computation

9-10-5(F)

See Code.

NfA

Parking Area Setbacks

9-1D-5(6)

Off-street parking spaces,
access drives or alsles
{including any and all

Impervious surfaces), open

More than A0° {rear/south lot
line)

None

4




to the sky, may be focated
in required interior side
yards and rear yards, to
within 40' of the nearest iot
line,

Open to the sy off- street
parking spaces, atress
drives or asies (inciudmg
any and all impervious
surfotes), may be located in
required extenor side and
front yards m only
novresidential districts to
within 15" of the nearest lot
iing

Staff interpretation: Parkng
15 hot permittied in exterior
and front yards in
residential districts.

Non-residential
Districts,

Front Yards And
Exterior Side Yards

9-10-5(G)1

Permanent peripheral
screening at least 4' high
shalt be constructed and
maintained in front yard
and exterior side yard areas
adjacent to parking areas.
This screening shall consist
of a planted earth berm,
densely planted evergreen
shrubs or trees or a
combination of both.

Project is located in residential
district.

N/A

Non-residential
Districts,

Interior Side And Rear
Yards

9-10-5(G)2

Permanent peripheral
screening at least 5" high
shali be constructed and
malntained in interior side
and rear yards adjacent to
parking areas. This
screening shall consist of a
planted earth berm,
densely planted evergreen
shrubs or trees, ora
combination of both. In
Interior side and rear yards,
the screening shall be so
located and constructed as
not to interfere or conflict
with the use of any utility
easement or utility
installatlons existing or
planned Yo be installed in
these easement areas

Project is located in residential
district.

N/A

Non-residential
Districts,

Interior Parking Lot
Landscaping

9-10-5(G)3

Landscaped areas shall
occupy not less than 10% of
the remaining site area
exciuding areas occupied by
buildings or other
structures, the required
front yard and al street
rights-of- way.

End parking islands of a
min. 9' width shall be

Project is located in residential
district.

N/A
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provided at each aisle end
of all parking bays.
Intermediate islands of a
min, 6" width shall be
provided between every 20
parking spaces. Each Island
shall be effectively
landscaped with
appropristely sized
plantings at a min. ratic of 1
shade tree and 9 dwarf
variety shrubs per island
and/or 50 LF of parking
area. Shade tree
distribution shall provide a
min. of 1 tree in the area
occupled by each 20

parking spaces.

Landscape center Islands
between each 3 bays of
parking are required unless

9-10-5(G)a{a) not feasible, in which casea | N/A None
perimeter landscape
setback of a min. 20' shall
be provided.
Parking areas which are
wider than one bay of
double parking may be
landscaped with shade
:etalled Landscaping trees planted In permanent
ans i
individual planter areas at a
min. ratio of 1 per 20 cars. A
variety of trees may be N/A - parking areas are not
8-10-5(G)4(b) used provided that they are | wider than one bay of parking. None
not on the prohibited plant
list of the Village and
further provided that they
do not bear fruit. Ground
cover plants, gravel, mulch
or grass shall be installed on
the ground,
Collective Provisions 9-10-5(H) See Code. N/A None
All off-street parking spaces
are open to sky and clearly,
Deslgn and located on the same lot, and
Maintenance, will be clearly designated with
9-10-5{1)1 See Code. striping outlining each parking | None
Open and Enclosed space and the direction of
Spaces traffic in access aisles.
: Compliance for all-weather,
;‘:‘:;:::ce hard surface pavement with
! 9-10-5{1)2 See Code. specific standards and None
specificatlon lIsted In code are
Surfacing stated In plans.
All open off-street parking Valkop enaromemt ans bebp|
Screaning And areas having more than 4 Dekrkct ezprissad coneerm Tew
tand 8-16-5{13 parking spaces shali be om Sarne anal wesdd by VATEIEION
eﬂacﬂvdvmedalong el T e vt mn e TSl
each side which faces alot | v facine reaisiectial
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in & residentsal distnict, or is

directly scross any street,
extept Bilnos Rowte 83
(Kmgery Highway), from
such residential district by
decorative masonry walls of
not legs than 5° nor more
than &' m hetght or by
densely planted tree or
shrub hedges, not fess than
5' i heyght at time of
instaliation.
bighting 9-10-5{1}4 See Code
Repair and Service 9-10-5(1)5 See Code. N/A None
N/A - owner and/or occupant
Maintenance 15 not business, r..ommen:ial,
Requirements 9-10-5(1}6 See Code, office, research, industrial or None
multiple-family uses of 4
dwelling units or greater
Parking spaces required on
an employee basis shall be
based on the max. # of
Employee Parking 9-10-5(%) employees on duty or See 9-10-5(K). None
residing, or both, on the
premises at any one time,
including shift changes.
Elementary School: 1
parking space for each
faculty member plus 1 for
each other full time
employee = 103 FTE
Theaters, auditoriums and
Required Spaces 9-10-5(K) ::::;‘ﬂ:c::;f; :rl:r"t‘:: :tsa:ft :fffsp I_U;DI;MHQ office None
schools and other
institutional
establishments:
1 parking space for each 3
seats, in accordance with
designed seating capacity.
Minimum Standards
For Parking Spaces,
Aisles And Parking Bays, 9-10-5(1)1 See Code. In compliance None
Minimum Parking
Space And Alsle
Dimensions
Actess Driveway From
Streets To Off-Streat
Parking Antl Louding $-10- Hor less than 14" witle or
Speces, Nonresidantial | S{L){a)2({a) more than 24" wide
uses, One Way
Driveway




Access Driveway From
Streets To Off-Street
Parking And Loading 9-10- Not less than 24’ wide or - ,
Spaces, Nonresidential | 5{L)2{a)2(b) more than 38" wide 35731 andi2 NonE
uses, Undivided two-
way driveway
Radius Connecting
i::? rl:::;r:::;::ge 9-10- Not less than 25' for ail 25 feet radius per Civil plans C- None
Nonresidentlal uses, 5{L}2{b)2(a) ather driveways 111W
Two-way driveways
Radius Connecting Not less than 25 for the
Street Pavement Edge 010 Inside radius and not less
And Driveway Edge, s{U2(b)2(b) than 5 for the outside See above. None
Nonresidential uses, radius for all other
One-way driveways: driveways.
The acute angle formed at
. the Intersectlon of &
:“f;::v';::::“;t':’;?f 910-5()2{c) | driveway and street 90° None
pavement edges shail not
be less than 60",
Driveway Location On Mot less than 70°.
Lots For All Uses Other Notwithstanding anything
Than Single- Family contained herein to the
Residentlal (Measured contrary, shared access N/A— This Is a Single-Family
From The Center Of The S-10-5(Li2(d) drives serving more than Residential Lot —_—
Driveway To The one lot may be located
Nearest Lot Line At The upon the Iitervening
Adjolning Street Line} common lot line
Spacing Between
Separate Driveway
Entrances On All Lots
Other Than In Single- N i
Family Attached 9-10-5{Lj2(e) | Not less than 400", :i‘;;em::l'f_:ts'""e'ﬁ“""" None
Districts {Measured
Center To Center At
The Lot Line Adjoining
A Street)
On Comer Lots For A
Uses; Spacing Between
Drivaway Entrance And
Right-Of-Way Gf An
Adacant intersecting Aparoa 45 feet frae
Street {Measured From ¥hasiedan Drive & Charry Tres
The Neerest Edge Of Qutsidle the functional area | Lasse Wrnrssstion te Sty | Yo
The Driveway B-30-5{L)2{6) | of the intersaction, or 500°, WETEATAE
Pavement At its whichevar is lass, Bopros &% % fess from e
Intersection With The Fharidien (iztve & Clanmhdan
Strect Pavement To Hith Rt
The Nearest Right-Of-
Way Line, Extended, OF
An Arifacent
Intersecting Street)
All driveways providing
thiract accass to an arterial
street shnll include a
m”' lﬂimysslrmﬁ':hm concrate median to dafine Mo cantrsls rusdian snd L
Uses Other Than Singh S-10-5{t)2{z) the separation between the | diver sy ttoruge prowdes vanatinn
Femily Residentiai ingress and egress lsnes reueLed
and shall have a driveway
storage aree [measured
from the properly line inte




the site] of not less than

ene hundred feet (100))
No partially dismantied,
Coran Vehicts o i
Permitted Outside Of 9-10-5(M) . N/A None
An Enclosed Garage permitted to be exposed
& outside of an enclosed
garage In any district.
spaces For The 5 HC Spaces required based
e ' 9-10-5{N) on 101-150 total off-street | 5 HC spaces provided None
Physically Handicapped N
parking spaces provided.
el s 9-10-5{0) See Code. No overnight bus parking None

Vehicles Prohibited

Prohibited Signs 9-11-4 See Code. N/A None
Temporary Signs 9-11-8 See Code. N/A None
Exemptions 9-11-6 See Code. None
Cor}struchon, 9-11-7 See Code. None
Maintenance
e 9118 See Code. None
Signs
General Provisions 9-11-9 See Code. None
Awnings, Canopies And | o, 41.1 See Cade. N/A None
Margquees
Permitted signs may be
located anywhere on the
property, but not closer
than 5' to any lot line. The
. location of signs on lots or
:"‘i’;"’"t; | District 9-11-11(A) parcels within residential | See 9-11-12(C) None
esldential Districts districts devoted to
nonresidential uses shall
conform to the standards
set forth in subsection (C) of
this section.
Sign Surface Area,
Number, Sign Types
And Height Limitations:
R-1, R-1A, R-2, R-3, R-4 9-11-12{A} See Code. See 9-11-12(C) None
And R-5 Residential
Districts
L-0-P Limited Office
Professional District, O-
R Office And Research
District, (-O-R Limited
Office And Research . i
District, M-1 Light 9-11-12{C) See Code. Sign area: None
Manufacturing District
And Nonresidentiat
Uses in Residential
Districts
Sign lllumination .
standards 9-11-13: See Code, N/A, no new slgns proposed None
Required Landscaping 9-11-14 See Code. N/A, no new slgns propesed None




Nonconforming Signs

8-11-15

See Code.

N/&, no new signs proposed

None

Signs Regufated Under
The Highway
Advertising Controi Act

0f 1971

9-11-16

See Code,

N/A

None

of school.

9-12-1{A)

Notes: Only traffic signals provided. “Do not enter” sign seems to be located on the wrong direction. No signage on addition

Standards

9-12-1(B)

See Code.

None

Permitted Accessary

Biisiings, Structures
arud Uses

5122

Children's reereational
equipment/playhouses are
permitted within the
nterior side, rear and court
yards, par bulk standards
Usted under9-12-4.

Refuze bins {max. size the
greater of 125sqg. ft, or 1%
Iot area),

Ehibdrs 'z tooran it nel
FCRagmEnT o rwnily
Peripirigs] warthile Tha Proam
yaid

Prohibited Uses

9123

See Code.

N/A

Bulk Regulations

9-12-4(A)

When an accessory use
bullding is structurally
attached to the principal
building, it is subject to and
must conform to zll
regulations of this title
applicable to the principal
building.

N/A

Bulk Regulations

9-12-4(B}

No detached accessory
bulilding shall be located
closer to a principal building
than 10", Further, a
detached accessory building
shall be located at jeast 5'
from any interlor side lot
line and at least 10' from
the rear lot line.

NfA

Helght

9-12.4/(c)

Ali detached aceessory
structures shall not excead
15" in helght extept: See
Code.

1367

Appurtenant Structures

9-12-4{Dj1{s)

Children's recreationst
equipment may be located
anywhere except na
regitired front yerd.

Lammebedt e Fra yard

Yed,

Obstructions

8-12-4{D)1{l)

On corner lots, no
obstructions of any kind,
Including vegetation higher
than 1B" above curb level or
edge of pavement, if there
is no curb, shall be located
in any portion of a yard
situated within 15' of the
lot corner formed by the

No development near corner

10



intersection of the 2 street
ROW lines.

Fences and Wails

9-12-4(12{b}

Fencas not greater than five
| feet {57 m height may ba
iocated arywhere oralot,
except in » requived front or
exterior side yard

Vi w Lol g b fmmre pragpoie s
ps et (il play il

e Errml dpd Larde widFE

Pou
renUeting
wal e e
albir fase
Iewt Fome
v |
AR el
plmpgressend
i et gned

pirbE il

Fencat and Walls

9-12-4{Dj2(3}

Notwithstancing the
provisions contained in
subsections {Dj2fa) through
{D)2{d} of thus saction, a
fence not grester than 6' i
hetgivt and at least B0%
open may be located
arywhere on a ot
whersugon the printipal
use i ingtitutionsl,
provided thet such fence
shall utiize a decormtive
dasign, such as wrought
Irots.

Bafun=Ting caae Bl e

s

et

Yes,
variation
redquand el

Refuse Disposal Areas
and Recycling
Containers - Location
And Screening of
Refuse Disposal Areas

9-12-11(A)

See Code.

7 feet tall trash enclostire

No person sha construct, aer, remodel, move or reconstruct any building or
structure, nor shall they improve any land preliminary to any use of such land

None

Zoning Certificates And without there first having been obtained a zoning certificate from the Zoning

Occupancy Certificates: | 9-14-2{A) Officer of the Village. No building parmit pertaining to the above mentioned

Issuance Of Permits activities shall be issued or obtained unless and until a zoning certificate shall
have first been obtained. Any buiiding permit or zonlng certificate issued in
conflict with the provisions of this title shall be null and void.

Zoning Certlficates And

Occupancy Certificates: .

Application For Zaning 9-14-2(B) See Code. N/A Nene

Certificate

Zoning Certificates And

Occupancy Certificates:

Application For Zoning | 9-14-2(C) See Code. N/A None

Certificate For

Industrial Use

Required Landscaping:

Requirement of Plan 9-14-2(D)1 See Code. N/A None

Standardsz for Required 9-14-2(0)2 See Code. Please refer to landscaping None

Landscaping plans.

Issuance Of Zoning

Certificate 9-14-2(E) See Code. N/A None

Period of Validity 9-14-2(F) See Code. N/A None

Qccupancy Permits 9-14-2{G) See Code. N/A None

Application For "y

Occupancy Permit 9-14-2(H} See Code. N/A None
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Application For
Occupancy Permits for | 9-14-2(1) See Code. N/A None
Industrial Uses
:,f:'::;:e of Oceupancy | o 4420y See Code, N/A None
Escrow Deposits 9-14-2(K) See Code, N/A None
Purpose 9-16-0 See Code. N/A None
Authority To Continue
Nonconforming
Buildings, Structures 9-16-1 See Code. N/A None
And Uses
Repairs And Alterations | 9-16-2 See Code. N/A MNone

A nonconforming building

or structure, all or

substantlally all of which Is

designed or intended for a

use not permitted in the

district in which it ts

located, shall not be added

$-16-3() to or enlarged in any

manner unless such

nonconforming building or | SUP and varlations will be

structure and use thereofIs | requested to bring bullding
Q:I: i:;:'::r:: made to conform to allthe | into conformance with all None

regulations of the district in | regulations of the R-1 zoning

which it is located, district.

A nonconforming building

or structure which is

nonconforming only as to

bulk, may be added to or

9-16-3(B) enlarged, provided such

additions or enlargement

conforms to all regulations

of the district in which it is

focated.

Ne building or structure

shahi be moved in whole or

in part to any other

location, unless every

partion of such bullding or
Moving el structure, and the use N/A bl

thereof, are made to

conform to all regulations

of the district In which the

moved building is located.
Restoration Of
Damaged
Nonconforming 9-16-5 See Code. N/A None
Buildings Or Structures
Discontinuance Of Use
Of Nonconforming 9166 See Code. N/A None
Building Or Structure
Change Of Use In
Nonconforming 9-16-7 See Code. N/A None
Building Or Structure

12




Elimination Of
Nonconforming

Buildings, Structures 9-16-8 See Code. N/A None
And Uses

Nonconforming Use Of

Conforming Buildings 9-16-9 See Code. NSA None
Or Structures

Nonconforming Use Of 9-16-10 N/A Nome

Land

The 3¢hbo! LHSTICT IS

requesting a walver tiom the
Prelmnary Hat 10-3-4 Spe Code. requirements to provide the watlation
Breliminary Plal of requested
subdivision.
i ired
Final Plat 10-3-5 See Code. AREICaTt s (Enuires IS 1 None

Final Plat.

N/A
Streets 10-4-1 See Code. NO hew streets are proposed. None
Manx. length for blocks shall
not exceed 1,400 in length,
except where in the opinion
10-4-2{A)1 of the Plan Commission N/A ) None
conditions may justify a Apph.catfle to larger
Blocks, Sizes greater distance. subdivisions of land tha:t
Widths of blocks shall be create streets _and mutltiple
determined by the lots that constitute a block or
10-4-2{A)2 condfition of the layout and hlocks None
shall be suited to the
intended layout.
Sidewalks are already
" provided along Clarendon Hills
I‘;:t::ar:’lssr::;f[:su:‘l;t:lkwavs Rd and Sheridan Dr.
(r:?mu:::sg t::, e:li::in Frosswalks are provided at
satisfactory pedestrian m.hersections of Clarendon
10-4-2{B)1 access to private and public Hills Rd/Midway Dr and None
facifities such as, but not Sheridan Dr/Clarendon Hilis
limited to, schools and Rd.
::;:Z’ ;;g;::‘ ﬁr:n::;":ks Length of school property
Blocks, Public does not exceed 900" in
Walkways length.
Easements for public
walkways shall be at least
12" in width. Pavement shall N/A
:;::Lgctn:: lann:onformance Applicable to larger
subdivisions of land that
10-4-2{B)2 with standard specifications ) None
adopted, from time to time, create streets and multiple
by resolution of the Board lots that constitute a block or
of Trustees. Typical cross Hoes:
sections of this easement
shail be provided.
Utility easements along
Easements 10-4-2(C)1 right-of-way lines shall be N/A None

provided as required in
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Public Improvements

Streets: General
Requirements

section 10-4-1 of this
chapter.
10-4-2{C)2 See Code. N/A None
10-4-2{C)3 See Code. NfA None
Lots, Sizes and Shapes 10-4-3(A) See Code. N/A None
Lots, Arrangement 10-4-3(B) See Code. N/A None
There is a small wetland on
site. The US Army Corps of
Engineers has provided a
Natural Enviranmental 14 letter of no jurisdiction, and
Features SeelCode, no mitigation is required None
under the Du Page
Countywide Stormwater and
Floodplain Grdinance.

10-71

10-7-2{8)

| This chapter sets forth the minimum acceptabie standard of improvements

Ch

Aok emionis

for all subdivisions, resubdivisions and planned unit developments regulated
hereunder. The required level of improvement shall apply to all
improvements whether public or private and shall, to the extent legally
permissible, apply to previously approved subdivisions, resubdivisions and
planned unit developments, where no final engineer approval has heretofare
been granted. All those improvements for which standards are not specifically
set forth shall have said standards set by resolution or published rules of the
Vitage Board. All Improvements shall meet the standards set forth In the
Viltage's Public Improvements Specification Manual or other resplution or
ublished rufes of the Villase Board,

Clarendon Hills Road is a
Minor Arterlals with a
Required Pavement Width
of 40°.

Existing pavament widths:

Yes, but this
is an existing
condition

Clarendon Hils Rd: ~30°
Sheridan Dr: ~30°
Cherry Tree Ln: =27

Sheridan Dr and Cherry
Tree Ln are Residential
Local Streets with Required
Pavement Widths of 40°.

Luthe and Gutters

10-7-2(C}

All streats ara to be
detigned and constructed
with curhs and gutters in Y,
Argeemting warr sisy
accordence with standard Eibasdian MU S

Street Pavements

10-7-2{D}

All streets pavements shall
be desligned and
constructed in accordance
with standard specifications | N/A None
adopted from time to time,
by resolution of the Board
of Trustees.

Unpaved Areas

10-7-2(E)

All unpaved areas within
dedicated rights-of- way
shall be graded and sodded
in accordance with standard
spedifications adopted,

N/A None
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Requirements for

from time to time, by
resolution of the President
and Board of Trustees

Please refer to engineer’s

Underground Wiring 10-7-3{a} SesiCode. review letter o

Storm Drainage System

And Cther Drainage 10-7-3(B) See Code. r:?:: ;z:‘:;:" engineer's None

Improvements

Public Water Supply

And Distribution Please refer to engineer’s

Systemns And Sanitary 10-7-3(0) See Code. review letter None

Sewerage Systems

Private Water Supply

And Private Sanitary | 10-7-3(D) See Code. PieaselTsleritolensinessis None
review letter

Sewage Systems

Sidewatks

10-7-4{A)

In all subdivisions
after the effective date of
this section, sidewalks shall
be provided on the sides of
all street rights-of-way
adjacent to and contained
within the subdivision being
developed.

See Code for further
Information.

No sidewalks on Cherry Tree
Lane.

A 5 sidewalk is proposed on
Cherry Tree Lane.

None

Public Walkways

10-7-4(B)

See Code.

N/A

None

Plansings

10.7-4(c}

Alt unpaved areas within
the street right-of-way shall
be seaded or sndded
Before the nelease of the
twelve {12} month
mamntenance bond can ke
recornmended by the
Village Engmneer, af
unpaved sregs batween the
edge of the road pavement
and the right-rf-way line
muist subpart an adeqiiate
mat of gras: Provision shati
be made to asvurs growth
of ait landseaping Street
treres shall be planced o
both sides of each
propogad Sireet exceps
whers there are existing
{7ess presant anst
preserved. Strest treey
newily plantcd shall he no
further apart than fifty fest
{50} or one wee per inside
Jot and twes {2} trees on
comur ko, whichever i
greater- The types of trees
shail be kmsted 1o those
varieties as zbproved by the
Plan Commission Newly

e Pawal iFrsmi o [Fae—wid

Yéi,
Al e
regirited
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planted street traes shall
not be less than 3" in
cafiper, measurad 1' from
the ground . The species of
treas so planted shali be
afternated s that trees of
the same species shall not
be planted corsecutively.
The planting scheduls and
sequence shull be subrect to
the approval of the Plan
Commission. Tha planting
of the following species of
tregs shafl be prohfbited:
See Code.
The MP\'WMG Clarwrudon WG Rl 2
street hghiting in al} dievignoiad B3 o nprnl e
subdivilons which shail be |~ TSP EE F
designed and canstrucied in it LN N Trs
Street Lighting 10-7-4{D) accordenca with stenderd | ¥ PR | vt
“ ; A . e Nyt may nol =R
mmmmm ks Ry hary vhras DHED
; by the Board of :t::::::r::v- o ojamine
Trustoes St
Street Signs 10-7-4E) See Code. N/A None
Commercial, industrial,
Officer Research And
Multi-Family And 10-7-4{F} See Code. N/A None
Parking And Lighting
Upon completion of any public improvements in any area or phase of
development, and further, upon the submission to the Village of a
certification from the engineering firm employed by the subdlivider affirming
that said public improvements or portions or segments thereof have been
completed in conformance with this Code and all engineering plans and
specifications submitted pursuant thereto, the Village shall within 20 days
after written notice from the subdivider either: a) accept sald Improvement,
or, b) designate in writing to the subdivider all aerations which shall be
required to obtain final acceptance of sald public inprovements, speciicslly
Acceptance of Public 10-7-5 citing the sections of the appropriate Code or the standard specifications

Impravements

adopted pursvant thereto relied upon by the Village in declining acceptance,
After acceptance of any public improvement by the Village, any letter of
credit, cash deposit, completion bond or ather guaranty required by this Code
securing the construction of said public improvement shall be remitted or
released to the subdivider in accordance with the terms of the subdivision
improvement agreement. Upon completion and acceptance by the Village,
owners shall convay and transfer said public Improvements or any part
thereof so accepted to the Village by appropriate bills of sale or other

dotuments,
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CHRISTOPHER 8. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD.
9575 West Higgins Road  Suite 800 Rosemont, lllinois 60018  TEL (847) B23-0500 FAX (B47) 8230520

March 3, 2022

Village of Willowbrook
835 Midway Drive
Willowhrook, IL 60527

Atlention: Michael Krol

Subject: Gowar West School - Stormwater Review

(CBBEL Project No. 300144.H226)

Dear Mike:

As requested, we have reviewed the following documents associated with this project on
behalf of the Village of Willowbrook:

Proposed Enginesring Plans prepared by Eriksson Engineering Associates, LTD.,
bearing a revision date of January 3, 2022

DuPage County Stormwater Management Reporl prepared by Erksson
Engineering Associates, LTD., and dated January 12, 2022

We have also received, but not reviewed the following documents:

Variation Request by Green Associates dated August 27, 2021

Village of Willowbrook Plan Review Application received September 15, 2021
lumark Parking Lot Luminaire Cut Sheeis and Shop Drawings received
Septernber 15, 2021

Photometric Plan prepared by Force Pariners and dated August 25, 2021
Architectural Plan Sheets prepared by Green Associates, bearing an issue date of
January 3, 2022

Landscape Plan prepared by Eriksson Engineering Associates, LTD., bearing an
issue date of July 30, 2021 _

Plat of Subdivision prepared by TFW Surveying & Mapping, inc. and dated May
24, 2021

Topographic Survey prepared by TFW Surveying & Mapping, Inc., bearing a
revision date of March 9, 2021

Traffic Study Memorandum prepared by Eriksson Engineering Associates, LTD.,
and dated July 30, 2021

Engineers Opinion of Probable Costs prepared by Erksson Engineering
Associates, LTD., and dated January 3, 2022

Lighting cut sheets from Lumark

Letter prepared by Green Associates, bearing a date of January 3, 2022

OLLAMHM
HAMLLOWEROOIGD T4 HH 200 DRS04 HRZGAGmIT 1 D167



Please note that our review is limited to stormwaler related items only and we understand that
a general civil engineering review Is baing conducted by others. The following items are noted
as part of our review:

1. Stormwaler detention is being provided in an underground vault (StormTrap).
Stormwater detention is provided for the new improvements plus compensation for an
existing detention which is being efiminated with the new development.

2. Post Construction Best Management Practices are being provided for the new
impervious area within the voids of the stane below the underground storage. The
purpose of the PCBMPs is 1o reduce pollutants and reduce runoff volume.

3. Thera is a smail wetland on site (less than 0.1 acre). The US Army Corps of Engineers
has provided a letter of no jurisdiction, and no mitigation is required under the Du Page
County Countywide Stormwater and Floodplain Ordinance. The wellands aspect of
the project were reviewad by our Environmental Resources staff.

4. A Stormwater Development Security is not required far units of government.

Please fee! free to contact me at (847) 823-0500 should you have any questions.
Sincerely, uesti
] 7
p&' £ }% _I,g g’/
:i"ff;"_“ {S & i\

Daniel L. Lynch, PE CFM
Head, Municipal Engineering Depariment

DL
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FOUNDHD IN 19450

TRI-STATE
FIRE PROYECTION DISTRICY
236 SUNRISE AVENUE & WILLOWBROOK. ILLINDIS 60527 ® (630) 323-6445

March 4, 2022

Green Associates Architecture, Inc.
Attn: Carole Pugh

1437 Harmony Court

Itasca, IL. 60143

847-317-0852

cd EIeenassocinles. com

&l interwesigrp.com

plapner@willowbrook.il.os

RE: Gower School District 62
7700 Clarendon Hills Road
Willowbrook, IL, 60527

Teo whom it may concern,

We have received a copy of the architectural plans for the above listed project, We have
completed a courtesy review and have no comment regarding applicable standards relative to fire
prevention and life safety. When the project is complete, we would like to complete a walk
through life safety courtesy inspection.

The Bureau of Fire Prevention has been asked to review the plans, specifications or other
documents submitted to see if compliance has been made with the Fire Prevention Codes and
Ordinances of the Tri-State Fire Protection District, Errors or omissions by representatives af
the Bureau of Fire Prevention do not constitute permission to cancel, set aside or waive any
provision of any applicable Code or Ordinance of the Tri-State Fire Prevention District,
Approvals by the Bureau of Fire Prevention will be in writing only.

Sincerely,

L ANPVAS
Lawrence P. Link
Director

Bureau of Fire Prevention
byar gt

630-654-6284




236 SUNRISE AVENUE @ WILLOWBROOK. ILLINOIS 60527 @ (630) 323-6445

March 4, 2022

Green Associates Architecture, loc.

Attn; Carole Pugh
1437 Harmony Court
itasca, IL. 60143
847-317-0852

cdpugh@greenassociates.com
@i :
RE: Gower West School

7650 Clarendon Hills Road
Willowbrook, IL 60527

We have received a copy of the architectural plans for the above listed project. We have
completed a courtesy review and have no comment regarding applicable standards relative to fire
prevention and life safety. When the project is complete, we would like to complete a walk

through life safety courtesy inspection.

The Bureau of Fire Prevention has been asked to review the plans, specifications or other
documents submitted 1o see if compliance has been made with the Fire Prevention Codes and
Ordinances of the Tri-State Fire Protection District. Errors or omissions by representatives of
the Bureau of Fire Prevention do not constitute permission to cancel, set aside or waive any
provision of any applicable Code or Ordinance of the Tri-State Fire Prevention District,
Approvals by the Burea of Fire Prevention will be in writing only.

Sincerely,
. ." :.};J

Faot
Lawrence P, Link

Director

Bureau of Fire Prevention

ink GiArietatefd oo

630-654-6284
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ZONING HEARING CASE NO. 22-62

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Plan Commission of the Village of Willowbrook,
DuPage County, Illinois, shall conduct a public hearing at a meeting of the Plan Commission on
the 6th of April, 2022 at the hour of 7:00 P.M. in the Willowbrook Police Department Training
Room, 7760 S. Quincy Street, Willowbrook, IL 60527,

The Governor of the State of Illinois has declared a Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation in
response to the COVID-19 outbreak and all of the Village of Willowbrook is covered by the
disaster area. In light of the ongoing COVID-19 outbreak, the Mayor of the Village of
Willowbrook has determined that an in person meeting for the April 6, 2022, Plan Commission
meeting may not be practical or prudent in light of the disaster.

All of the Members of the Plan Commission participating in the April 6, 2022 Plan Commission
meeting, wherever their physical location, shall be verified and determined that they can hear one
another and can hear all discussion and testimony during the meeting.

Signed: Frank A. Trilla, Mayor of the Village of Willowbrook
Dated: March 16_, 2022

The Village will be providing an option to attend the April 6, 2022 Plan Commission meeting
virtually. To join the Zoom Meeting, use the link below:

Meeting ID: 890 9797 5937
Passcode: 694214

The purpose of this public hearing shall be to consider a petition for a special use permit and other
relief, exceptions, and variations as may be required to allow a 19,000 square foot, one-story
addition to the existing Gower West Elementary School building, expansion and improvements to
the existing parking lots, addition of a new parking lot, addition of a new children’s playground,
and general site and landscaping improvements generally located at the southwest cotner of
Clarendon Hills Road and Sheridan Drive and legally described as follows:

PARCEL 1. LOT 34 IN PALATIAL HILLS UNIT #2, SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION
27, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN.
VILLAGE OF WILLOWBROOK, DUPAGE COUNTY, IL.

PARCEL 2. THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP
38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF ANDERMAN’S
SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 27:
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE LOT 1 OF SAID ANDERMAN'S
SUBDIVISION. THENCE NORTHERLY PARALLEL TO THE EAST LINE OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 27 TO THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
OF SHERIDAN ROAD AS PLATTED AND RECORDED IN PALATIAL HILLS UNIT #1.
THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SHERIDAN ROAD
AS PLATTED AND RECORDED IN PALATIAL HILLS UNIT #1 TO THE EAST LINE OF



THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 27. THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE
EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF
ANDERMAN’S SUBDIVISION, THE PLACE OF BEGINNING EXCEPT THE EAST 33 FEET
THEREOF DEDICATED FOR HIGHWAY. IN DUPAGE COUNTY, IL.

PINs: 09-27-409-016 and 09-27-449-001
ADDRESS: 7650 Clarendon Hills Road, Willowbroock, Hlingis.

The applicant for this petition is Gower School District 62, with permission from the property
owner Gower School District, 7700 Clarendon Hills Road, Willowbrook, Hlinois 60527,

Capies of the application and related documentation are on file in the office of the Planner, Village
of Willowbrook, 835 Midway, Willowbrook, Ilinois, and are available for public inspection.

Any individual with a disability requiring a reasonable accommodation in order to participate in
any public meeting held under the authority of the Village of Willowbrook should contact Brian
Pabst, ADA Compliance Officer, Village of Willowbrook, 835 Midway, Willowbrook, IL 60527,
or call (630) 920-2261, Monday through Friday, between 8:30 AM. and 4:30 P.M., within a
reasonzble time before the meeting. Requests for sign language interpreters should be made a
minimum of five working days in advance of the meeting.

All persons desiring to be heard in support or opposition to the application shall be afforded an
opportunity and may submit their statements orally, in written form, or both. This hearing may be
recessed to another date if not concluded on the evening scheduled.

Brian Pabst, Village Administrator
{630)-920-2261

Published in the March 21, 2022 edition of the Chicago Sun-Times.






